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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

31 31 31 31 31
10,717 11,640 12,029 11,799 11,920
1,402,212 1,522,978 1,573,874 1,543,781 1,559,613
1,825 1,984 2,375 3,565 4,673
238,783 259,587 310,745 466,445 611,415
3,410 795 913 2,017 2,535
446,164 104,018 119,457 263,904 331,679
915 915 915 915 915
119,719 119,719 119,719 119,719 119,719
91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500
12,880 13,578 14,503 15,595 18,101
1,685,219 1,776,546 1,897,573 2,040,450 2,368,335
120,546 116,516 125,555 133,728 135,041
15,772,239 15,244,953 16,427,616 17,496,972 17,668,764
140.77 148.39 158.50 170.44 197.83
18,418 19,415 20,738 22,300 25,884
37.27 8.69 9.98 22.04 27.70
4,876 1,137 1,306 2,884 3,624
10.7 11.7 11.6 11.7 13.4
30.4 6.0 6.5 13.4 15.0
8,335 5,935 5,764 6,243 6,224
1,090,551 776,535 754,162 816,834 814,348
(7,484) (3,016) (8,757) (11,491) (6,295)
(979,207) (394,613) (1,145,766) (1,503,482) (823,638)
1,377) (4,495) 8,339 6,871 (346)
(180,167) (588,126) 1,091,075 899,002 (45,271)
3,540 2,198 6,790 8,195 7,670
463,174 287,586 888,404 1,072,234 1,003,543
1,219 985 1,739 1,957 2,065
159,494 128,877 227,531 256,054 270,185
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2020 2021 2022

2021 2022
$8,775 $8,481 $8,337 3% @)%
2,558 2,905 3,254 14% 12%
696 413 329 41y (20)%
12,029 11,799 11,920 @)% 1%
6,820 5,932 5,846 13)% @)%
2,854 2,302 1,401 (19)% (39)%
2,355 3,565 4,673 51% 31%
155 93 45 (40)% (52)%
2,510 3,658 4,718 46% 29%
590 426 236 (28)% (45)%
1,197 1,124 1,311 (6)% 17%
1,787 1,550 1,547 (13)% %
723 2,108 3,171 192% 50%
39 502 755 1,187% 50%
$684 $1,606 $2,416 135% 50%

2021 ASU 2016-13
2021 1,606 2022 2,416
2021 2022
901 190
121 86
253 187 48
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« D
630 748 697 19% %
337 482 466 43% @)%
470 498 423 6% (15)%
1,437 1,728 1,586 20% O
TMNA (GD)
201 300 253 49% (16)%
48 61 32 27% (48)%
426 364 247 (15)% (32)%
675 725 532 % Q7%
TMNA « ) 63.4% 61.8% 54.9%
2020 79 17
2021 66 15
13 2022
65 15 13
THINA

TMNA
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(D) $56,364 $65,653 $72,185 16% 10%
( ) 17,632 13,539 10,247 (23)% (24)%
') 73,996 79,192 82,432 1’ 4%
36,387 37,091 35,455 2% @)%
$110,383  $116,283  $117,887 5 1%
« 36 37 37
« 69 68 69
¢ 953 1,002 966 5 @)%
371 395 399 6% 1%
1,324 1,397 1,365 6% @)%
294 185 64 G7)% (65)%
2021 ASU  2016-13
24 60
24 85
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562 511 504 9% L)%

119 110 34 @)% (69)%

60 31 3 (48)% (90)%

137 74 7 (46)% 91)%

« ) 316 215 44 (32)% (80)%

2022 2021

2022 2021
80 2022
2021 ASU 2016-13
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2,593 2,604 3,020 % 16%
9,301 9,525 9,989 2% 5%
)
$933 $956 $1,015 2% 6%
187 317 ) 70% (122)%
1,120 1,273 944 14% (26)%
455 369 405 (19)% 10%
364 363 386 % 6%
819 732 791 A1)% 8%
301 541 153 80% 72)%
72 130 34 81% 74)%
$229 $411 $119 79% 1%
2021 411 2022
119 2021 2022
388
36 96
59
2021 2022
16 2021
2022
2021 COVID-19
COVID-19
2021 2022
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( ) 0.44% 0.29% 0.22%
« ) 1.09% 0.90% 0.72%
( ) $9,555 $10,035 $9,012
( )
0.41% 0.27% 0.43%
0.34% 0.20% 0.26%
ASU 2016-13
2020
ASU  2016-13
2020
31 0.29 2022 31 0.22
2021 0.90 2022 0.72
2021
9,012
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$499 $727 $1,215
ASU 2016-13 - 292 -
(370) (287) (237)
50 57 58
548 426 236
$727 $1,215 $1,272
2020
2021 31 2022 31
37 26
31
2020 2021 2022
0.97% 1.47% 1.49%
2021 31 2022 31
37 26
2021 ASU  2016-13
2020

77/313



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
2021 31 1,215 2022 31
1,272 2021 1.47 2022
1.49 57
2022
2022 31
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
$51,171  $20,889  $13,466 $9,642 $7,279 $7,002  $109,449
1,175 7 532 365 258 452 3,559
19 16 14 13 12 45 119
) 27 16 - - - - 43

$52,392  $21,698  $14,012  $10,020 $7,549 $7,499  $113,170

2022 31
297
2022 31
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12

TMCC T™MCC

T™MCC

TMCC
T™MCC

2022 31
2021 31 2022 31
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6.6 11.7

T™MS 5.0
31
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TFS
TFS
TFS TMCC TFS
12
TFS
TMCC
2022 31
2021 31 2022 31
$17,027 $17,021 0.20% $16,896 $16,876 0.43%
( MTN 44,294 44,149 1.64% 46,387 46,235 1.55%
)
( EMTN 16,262 16,173 1.57% 13,891 13,813 1.54%
)
8,176 8,170 1.33% 5,368 5,364 1.28%
85,759 85,513 1.31% 82,542 82,288 1.30%
24,256 24,212 1.29% 26,907 26,864 1.01%
$110,015 $109,725 1.31% $109,449 $109, 152 1.23%
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MTN EMTN
)
2021 31 $17,027 $44,294 $16,262 $8,176 $85,759
- 17,205 2,141 2,006 21,352
(131) (15,112)  (4,150) (4,810) (24,203)
- - (362) ) (366)
2022 31 $16,896 $46,387 $13,891 $5,368 $82,542
2022 30 $4,518 $250 ¢ $124 $4,892
2022
16.7 18.5 17.2
WV
SEC SEC
2024
T™CC
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EMTN

EMTN
EMTN

T™MCC

EMTN

2022

EMTN

30
EMTN
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TMCC
EMTN
2021 EMTN
60.0

28.1
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2022
2022

31

31
30
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$24,256
16,726
(14,075)

$26,907

$3,489

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC
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2024 12
SEC
SEC
364
TMCC 100
5.0
5.0
2023 2025
31

2021

2021 31
364
31
2027
31 2022 31
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31
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5.0
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2023
364
7.0
2021 31 2022 31 3.2
T™MCC 2022 31 TMCC
4.6 2.3 2023 300
2024 31 2.0 2025
2021 31 2022 31
T™MCC ™S 2025 5.0

2021 31 2022 31
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TFS
TFS
TFS
TFS

1

TFS TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
TFS
100
10
2022 31
( )TFS
)
TFS
30
TFS
TFS
TFS
100
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TMCC 100,000
TMCC TMCC
TMCC
TMCC TFS TFS
TMCC TMCC TMCC
TMCC
TFS
TFS
TMCC TFS
TMCC
TFS
TMCC TFS TMCC TFS
TMCC
TCPR TFS TMCC TCPR
TCPR
TFS
TCPR TFS
TCPR TFS TCPR

TFS TCPR
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2021 12
LIBOR
LIBOR
SOFR
LIBOR ARR
LIBOR
2021
ASU  2020-04

LIBOR
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LIBOR
LIBOR 2023 30
2021 12 31
LIBOR ARR
LIBOR
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ARR
ARR
SOFR
ARR
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FICO

FICO
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10 2022 31
120
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ALCO

100

ALCO
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12
31 2022 31 100bp
100bp 100bp
$(24.9) $7.6
$56.1 $(38.4)
2021
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2022

31

31

1SDA
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2021 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$217 $211 $211 $- $- $- $-
8 10 2 7 1 - -
196 196 - - 196 - -
177 187 - 8 61 118 -
79 80 42 13 11 3 11
49 52 9 7 19 10 7
$726 $736 $264 $35 $288 $131 $18
$3,201 $- $1,409 $1,048 $723 $21
$3,937 $264 $1,444 $1,336 $854 $39

2022 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$538 $509 $509 $- $- $- $-
26 23 - 4 8 1 10
9 10 3 6 1 - -
598 568 - 7 150 310 101
119 116 65 16 16 - 19
82 78 17 11 22 22 6
$1,372 $1,304 $594 $44 $197 $333 $136
$2,713 $1,462 $218 $154 $819 $60
$4,017 $2,056 $262 $351 $1,152 $196
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VaR
99

VaR

2022 31

$260
$129
$262
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ooooood
TFS
TMCC 12
TMCC 60,000,000,000
TMCC
2021 17

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
E14 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)

T™MCC 60,000,000,000
TMCC TMCC

2021 17

(The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Luxembourg Branch)
L-2453 2-4
(2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg)

(Vertigo Building - Polaris)
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TMCC
TMCC  TMCC TCPR
5.0 364
TMCC  TCPR
5.0 364
5.0

TMCC
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2021
2022
2021 11
2025 2027
5.0
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DSC
DSC

CSC
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TMNA
CsC DSC
TMNA CsC

DSC

CSC DSC
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100,000 91,500 8,500
91,500
50,000,000 915,000,000
1996 5,000 91,500 65 4,200 1,197 1,860
"
75024-5965
2-5
91,500 100
6565
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2018

TMCC

31

2019

2020

TMCC

TMCC
31
TMCC TFSIC
2020
700
TMCC

T™CC

T™MCC
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TMCC
)
1961 1990 T™S 2007 10 2013
™S
2012
2013
2013 2016
2013
2017 12
2016 2017 12
2016 2017
TFS 2016
TFS 2017 TFS
2016 TFSIC
2020
TMNA 2021 10 TFSB
2016 TMCC 2016
2018 TMCC
2018 TMCC
1970 10 2003 T™cC 2012 2014
2014 2015 ™S
2015 2017 12
2017 12
2019
2019 2019 TMCC
2017 12 2022
2019 TMCC
2019 TMCC
TFSIC 2022 T™MCC
1971 30 1993 2007
2012 12
2013 2015 12
2016 2019
TFS
2019 TMCC
2022 TFSIC
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1961 12 28 1986 SMBC
SMBC 2012 2014
2014 2015
2015 2017
2017 2018
2018 2021
SMBC 2021
TFS
TFSIC
2021 TMCC
1959 10 29 1984 2012 2015
2015 2017
2015 2018
2017 2019
2017 2020 TMNA
2018 2019
2019 2019
2019
2020
2019 2020 12
2020 TMCC TMNA
1967 1992 T™S TMNA T™S 2007
2012
2012 2014 11
2014 12 2017
2017 2020
2020 2022
2022
MCC TMNA
1966 1990 ™S 2013 12 2015 ™S
2015 2018 12 ™S
2018 12
2022 TMCC
2022 TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC
38
)
1961
1971 30
1970 10
1966
1969 11 30 1993 T™S 2012
2013 TFSB
- 2013 2017
TMCC
2017
2019 TMCC
2019
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1964 12 28 1999 T™S 2011
2015 ™S
2015
2017 ™S
2017 2019
11 TMNA
2019
2019 11 TMCC
2019 2020 TMCC
2019 2020
TFSIC 2019
11 2020 TMNA
2020 TFSIC
2020 2022
TMCC
2021 10
TFSB 2022
TMCC
1968 26 TMCC 2010 11
2018
2018 2022
TMCC
2022 TMCC
1960 22 1999 2005
2005
2015 TMCC
2015
2020 TPG Global
LLC
2020 TMCC
2021
TMCC

TMCC
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IT

ARA

1A 1A

1A

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC

ARA
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1A
TMCC 1A
31
2021 2022
$11,254 $11,783
397 403
225 395
$11,876 $12,581
10-K
10-Q
1983 THCC
SEC
TMCC
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2022 31

TMCC

T™MCC TMCC
2021 2022
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TMCC 2022
7,029,057
2015 ™S
2015
120
50
™S
55
T™MS
65
T™MS
TMCC
TMNA
2015 ™S

2015

T™S

60
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T™MS

™S
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2022
2015
™S
TMCC  TCPR
T™MS
™S
60
™S
62
25
T™MS
TMNA



2015

TMNA

™S

TMNA

TMNA 60

T™S
2015

T™MS

T™S
TMNA
TMNA
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59.5

T™MS

ERSP
TMNA

ERSP



2015 T™S SERP
SERP TMCC
SERP SERP
SERP a SERP
b SERP
c TMS
100
T™MS TMNA
T™S
TMNA
T™MS
TMCC
TMNA
DCP 100
TMNA
15
DCP DCP
T™S
2017
TMCC

DCP
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ooooooo
2015
SERP
62
25
30
SERP
SERP 55
y T™MS
SERP
DCP SERP
™S
10
T™MS
2015
DCP

DCP
TMNA

DCP
2016 TMNA



T™S
PULTIP TMCC
PULTIP
DCP

12 31

PULTIP

2016 PULTIP
TMCC
2016

2020 10

TMNA
TMNA
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23

38

103

134

59

193

2021

2022

2022

SEC

31

116/313

2022
130.84
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10-K

131
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2022 31

TMCC 1934

SEC
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31
2020 2021 2022
$ 8,775 | 1,148,121 |$ 8,481 | 1,109,654 |$ 8,337 | 1,090,813
2,558 334,689 2,905 380,090 3,254 425,753
696 91,065 413 54,037 329 43,046
12,029 | 1,573,874 11,799 | 1,543,781 11,920 | 1,559,613
6,820 892,329 5,932 776,143 5,846 764,891
2,834 370,801 2,302 301,194 1,401 183,307
2,375 310,745 3,565 466,445 4,673 611,415
933 122,074 956 125,083 1,015 132,803
322 42,130 410 53,644 (26) (3.402)
3,630 474,949 4,931 645,172 5,662 740,816
590 77,196 426 55,738 236 30,878
1,561 204,241 1,487 194,559 1,697 222,035
455 59,532 369 48,280 405 52,990
2,606 340,969 2,282 298,577 2,338 305,904
1,024 133,980 2,649 346,595 3,324 434,912
111 14,523 632 82,691 789 103,233
$ 913 119,457 ¢ 2,017 263,904 [$ 2,535 331,679

117/313



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

31
2020 2021 2022
913 | 119,457 | $ 2,017 | 263,904 | $ 2,535 | 331,679
2020
(523) 13 1,701 9 1,178 @] (3,664)
2021
(262)
2022 1,047
2020 L (131) @)  (2,093) L (131)
2021 654
2022
12 1,570 %) (916) @ @79
925 | 121,027 | $ 2,010 | 262,988 | $ 2,506 | 327,885

118/313
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2021 31 2022 31
$ 8,195 1,072,234 | $ 7,670 1,003,543
1,957 256,054 2,065 270,185
4,820 630,649 4,953 648,051
2021 31 1,178
154.130 79,192 10,361,481 82,432 10,785,403
2022 31 1,246
163,027
37,091 4,852,986 35,455 4,638,932
2,473 323,567 2,466 322,651
$ 133,728 17,496,972 [ $ 135,041 17,668,764
$ 109,725 14,356,419 | $ 109,152 14,281,448
2,860 374,202 1,564 204,634
5,548 725,900 6,224 814,348
118,133 15,456,522 116,940 15,300,430
2021 2022 31
100,000 915 119,719 915 119,719
91,500
2 262 2 262
8 1,047 1) (2,748)
14,670 1,919,423 17,205 2,251,102
15,595 2,040,450 18,101 2,368,335
$ 133,728 17,496,972 [ $ 135,041 17,668,764
2021 31 2022 31
$ 21,745 2,845,116 | $ 20,932 2,738,743
6,599 863,413 11,886 1,555,164
89 11,645 66 8,635
$ 28,433 3,720,174 | $ 32,884 4,302,543
$ 24,212 3,167,898 | $ 26,864 3,514,886
14 1,832 10 1,308
$ 24,226 3,169,730 | $ 26,874 3,516,194
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2019 31 915 2 3 12,658 13,578
— — — 913 913
— — 12 — 12
2020 31 915 2 15 13,571 14,503
ASU 2016-13 . . . (218) (218)
— — — 2,017 2,017
— — ) — )
— — — (700) (700)
2021 31 915 2 8 14,670 15,595
— — — 2,535 2,535
— — 29) — (29)
2022 31 915 2 (1) 17,205 18,101
2019 31 119,719 262 393 1,656,173 1,776,546
_ — — 119,457 119,457
— — 1,570 — 1,570
2020 31 119,719 262 1,963 1,775,630 1,897,573
ASU - 2016-13 — — — (28,523) (28,523)
_ — — 263,904 263,904
— — (916) — (916)
— — — (91,588) (91,588)
2021 31 119,719 262 1,047 1,919,423 2,040,450
— — — 331,679 331,679
— — (3,794) — (3,794)
2022 31 119,719 262 (2,748)| 2,251,102 2,368,335
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31
2020 2021 2022
913 119,457 |$ 2,017 263,904 |$ 2,535 331,679
6,930 906,721 6,049 791,451 5,963 780,199
(2,485)| (325,137)|  (2.496)| (326.577)|  (2,396)|  (313,493)
590 77,196 426 55,738 236 30,878
707 92,504 789 103,233 1,019 133,326
15)|  (67,383) 1,401 183,307 (230) (30,093)
“n (6,149) (149) (19,495) 181 23,682
10 1,308 ®) (393) ©) (916)
“82)|  (63,065) 142 18,579 (465) (60,841)
2 262 ,521)|  (329,848)|  (1,288)|  (168,522)
19 2,486 (44) (5.757) 24 3,140
122 15,962 632 82,691 652 85,308
5,764 754,162 6,243 816,834 6,224 814,348

(2,392)| (312,969)|  (2,215)|  (289,811)|  (2.468)|  (322,913)

345 45,140 422 55,214 1,769 231,456
1,200 157,008 932 121,943 338 44,224

(29,375)| (3,843,425)|  (38,702)| (5,063,770)| (41,057)| (5,371,898)
25,668 | 3,358,401 28,009 [ 3,664,698 34,335 | 4,492,391
0 (262) 4,793 627,116 3,339 436,875

(15,350)| (2,008,394)| (16,778)| (2,195,234)| (15,064)| (1,970,974)

11,775 | 1,540,641 11,821 | 1,546,660 12,510 | 1,636,808

600)[  (78,504) (200) (26,168) (200) (26,168)
25 3,271 506 66,205 300 39,252

— — — — (26) (3,402)

(51) (6,673) 79) (10,336) 71) (9,290)

(8,757)| (1,145,766)|  (11,491)| (1,503,482)|  (6,295)|  (823,638)
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31
2020 2021 2022
26,847 | 3,512,661 50,281 | 6,578,766 37,266 | 4,875,883
(23,375)| (3,058,385)|  (30,648)| (4,009,984)|  (38,156)| (4,992,331)
1,861 243,493 9,049)| (1,183,971) 555 72,616
3,000 392,520 — — — —
— — (3,000)|  (392,520) — —
16 2,003 (13) (1,701) 1) (1,439)
(10) (1,308) @00)[  (91,588) — —
8,339 | 1,091,075 6,871 899,002 G468y (45,271)
5,346 699,471 1,623 212,353 @n|  (54,560)
3,183 416,464 8,529 | 1,115,934 10,152 | 1,328,288
8,529 [ 1,115,934 |$ 10,152 | 1,328,288 9,735 | 1,273,727
2,568 335,997 |$ 2,445 319,904 1,649 215,755
269 35,196 [$ 2,463 322,259 1,797 235,119
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TMCC
TFS 100
TFSIC 100
TFS T™C 100 TFS
T™C T™MCC

T™CC

100
T™MIS

™IS
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22

2021

2021

2021 11 19

2023

12

TMCC

CSC

TMCC
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2022 31 25

Inc.

TMCC

DSC



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
US GAAP
12
TMCC 100
VIE
US GAAP
2021 ASU 2016-13
326 ASU 2016-13 ASU 2016-13
ASU 2016-13
ASU 2016-13
292
218

2020 190
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ASU 2016-13
2021

ASU 2020-04 848

2022 12 31

ASU 2020-08 310-20

2021 FASB ASU  2021-05 842
ASU 2022
2022 FASB ASU  2022-02 326
ASU ASU 2016-13 326
ASU ASU

2023
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2021 ASU  2016-13

326

2022 31

2022

2022 31
674
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2021 31
$ 217 $ 4 $ 100) s 211
8 2 — 10
196 — — 196
177 12 @ 187
31 1 — 32
1 — — 1
47 2 0)) 47
49 3 — 52
$ 726 $ 24 $ 14 s 736
4,084
$ 4,820
2022 31
$ 538 $ — $ 9 3 509
26 — ®) 23
9 1 — 10
598 4 (34) 568
20 — — 20
11 — @ 10
88 1 ®) 86
82 — ) 78
$ 1,372 $ 6 $ 74 $ 1,304
3,649
$ 4,953

250
90

2022 1.1 2021

128/313



2022

10

10

2021

31

12
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31
2020 2021 2022

(41)

$ 9 % 20 )
$ ®

$ 41 % 114 (158)

$ 5 % 15 22

2022 31

$ 53 53

378 367

381 360

359 330

201 194

$ 1,372 1,304
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2022 2021 31
2022 2021 31
214 187
120
2021 31 2022 31
$ 66,991 $ 73,152
13,642 10,298
80,633 83,450
1,145 1,330
(1,408) (1,102)
(1,075) (1,195)
(103) (51)
(1,178) (1,246)
$ 79,192 $ 82,432
2021 2022 31 22.1 21.2
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30

60

90

29
30

60

90

OOooOoOoOoo
2021 31
2016
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$32,026 $16,047 $ 8,972 $ 5,977 $ 2.435 49  $ 65,953
59
147 145 114 83 46 27 562
89 37 39 28 21 11 8 144
18 18 13 9 5 6 69
$ 32,228  $ 16,249 $ 9.127 $ 6,000 $ 2.497 537 $ 66,728
2022 31
2017
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
$32,382  $21,917  $9.624  $4,774  $2.674 $ 718  $ 72,089
59
275 304 153 101 63 36 932
89 68 82 40 25 16 1 242
33 39 17 13 8 7 117
$ 32,758  $ 22,342  $9.834  $4.913  $2.761 $ 772 $ 73,380
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2022 2021 31 192
160 120
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2021 31
2016

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
s — s — $ — L J— s — LI — $ 5,893 $ 5,893
— — — — — — 218 218
— — — — — — 35 35
— — — — — — 11 11
s — s — $ — s — s — s — $ 6,157 $ 6,157
$ 1,874 $ 320 $ 59 $ 356 $ 312 $ 1,493 s — $ 4,951
8 49 3 20 9 99 — 188
13 — — — 12 17 — 42
— — — 13 9 — — 22
$ 1,895 $ 369 $ 599 $ 389 $ 342 $ 1,609 $ — $ 5,203

$ 503 $ 334 $ 200 $ 41 $ 106 $ 176 $ 878 $ 2,238

$ 505 $ 334 $ 206 $ 42 $ 113 $ 195 $ 887 2,282

©

$ 2,400 $ 703 $ 805 $ 431 $ 455 $ 1,804 $ 7,044 $ 13,642

2022 31
2017
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

$ - 35— $  — $  — $ — 8 — $ 2,97 $ 2,927
— — — — — — 16 16
$ — $ — $  — $  — $ — $ — $ 2,943 $ 2,943
$1,614 $ 1,245 $ 264 $ 384 $ 260 $ 1,245 § @ — $ 5,012
2 — — — — 5 — 7
$ 1,616 $ 1,245 $ 264 $ 384 $ 260 $ 1,250 $ = — $ 5,019
$ 662 $ 32 $ 209 $ 158 $ 37 $ 173 $ 774 $ 2,334
1 1 — — — — — 2
$ 663 $ 32 $ 209 $ 158 $ 37 $ 173 $ 774 $ 2,336
$ 2,279 $ 1,567 $ 473 $ 542 $ 297 $ 1,423 $ 3,717 $ 10,298
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2022 2021 31 22
2022 2021 31
120
30
2021 31
90
30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 562 $ 144  $ 69 $ 775 $ 65,953 $ 66,728 $ 39

— — — — 6,157 6,157 —
— — — — 5,203 5,203 —
— — — — 2,282 2,282 —

$ 562 $ 144 % 69 $ 775 $ 79,595 $ 80,370 $ 39

2022 31

90

30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 932 % 242 $ 117 $ 1,291 $ 72,089 $73,380 $ 65

— — — — 2,943 2,943 —
— — — — 5,019 5,019 —
— — — — 2,336 2,336 —

$ 932 % 242 $ 117 $ 1,291 $ 82,387 $83,678 $ 65
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2022 2021

2022 2021

2022 2021

2021 COVID-19

29
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2021 ASU 2016-13
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TMCC

120

FICO

FICO
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120
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2020
ASU 2016-13
2021 3l
( ) 2020
« )
2021
2022 31
« )
2022 31
TMNA
TMNA
2022
2022
2021
ASU 2016-13
COVID-19
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2021 31
$ 486 $ 241 $ 727
281 11 292
(287) — (287)
48 9 57
547 121) 426
$ 1,075 $ 140 $ 1,215
37
2022 31
$ 1,075 $ 140 $ 1,215
(237) — 37)
58 — 58
299 (63) 236
$ 1,195 $ 77 $ 1,272
26
929
187 2021 31
TMNA 1,028
162
57
488 2021
292
COVID-19

139/313

196



12
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2022 2021 31
2021 31 2022 31
$ 48,337 $ 45,728
(101) (46)
(1,759) (1,272)
(9,386) (8,955)
$ 37,001 $ 35,455
( ) 2021 31 2022 31 9.3 16.2
31
2023 $ 5,604
2024 3,620
2025 1,073
2026 83
2027 8
$ 10,388
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orc
oTC

2022 31
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2021

2022

0TC

31

2021
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2021 31 2022 31
44,125 $ 1,026 $ 64,327 $ 1,425
7,274 330 1,594 55
51,399 $ 1,356 $ 65,921 $ 1,480
(840) (761)
(462) (658)
$ 54 $ 61
55,062 $ 1,142 $ 19,903 $ 822
4,321 243 8,102 717
59,383 $ 1,385 $ 28,005 $ 1,539
(840) (761)
(544) (753)
$ 1 $ 25

29
31 132 10
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31
2020 2021 2022
$ 2,488 $ 1,954 $ 1,498
180 420 107
2,668 2,374 1,605
(703) 1,402 (438)
650 (1,351) 818
219 (123) (584)
$ 2,834 $ 2,302 $ 1,401
2021 31 2022 31

$ 85,759 $ 85,513 1.31 $ 82,542 $ 82,288 1.30

24,256 24,212 1.29 26,907 26,864 1.01

$ 110,015  $ 109,725 1.31 $ 109,449  $ 109,152 1.23

144/313



2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

31

17.0

2049

145/313

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

$ 51,171
20,889

13,466

9,642

7,279

7,002

(297)

$ 109,152

2022 2021 31 16.9



364
TMCC 100
364
2022 2021
364
2022 2021 31
TMCC
2023 2024
4.6
2022 2021
TMcC
5.0
2021 31

2023

31

2025

5.0

2025

7.0
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2027

T™MS

3.2

2022
2.3
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TCPR
5.0
5.0
2023
31 TMCC
300
2025

2022

oOoOooodn

2.0



VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
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VIE
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE



VIE TMCC
1,667 1,409
VIE
VIE TMCC

TMCC
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VIE
2021 31
VIE VIE
$ 1,521 $ 21,745 $ 46 19,665 % 13
436 6,599 43 4,547 1
$ 1,957 $ 28,344 $ 89 24,212 $ 14
2022 31
VIE VIE
$ 1,284 $ 20,932 $ 51 18,562 $ 8
645 11,886 15 8,302 2
$ 1,929 $ 32,818 $ 66 26,864 $ 10
VIE TMCC TMCC
VIE 2022 2021 31
TMCC
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
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T™MCC

TMNA
TDIG

TMNA

VIE
2022 2021 31
TDIG 2022 2021 2020
VIE
2022 2021 31
2022 2021 2020

2021 31 2022 31
$ 2,338 $ 3,289
141 119
2,479 3,408
100 100
$ 2,579 $ 3,508

TMCC
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12
2022 32 2021
36 2020 36
2032 TMNA
2022 2021 31 84 93
TMCC
2022 31
31

2023 $ 19
2024 16
2025 14
2026 13
2027 12
45
$ 119

a3

$ 106
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ROU
TMCC
31
10
2021
31

2022

TMCC

2031

31

2021

10

TMCC

31

TMCC
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ROU
2022 31
$ 97
8.3
2.76
$ 26
100
2028 20 2029 50 2030
2032 10 TMCC
TMCC
2022
2022
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2020 11 24 CFPB
10
TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
2015
2015
25 120

60
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2022 2021 2020
TMCC
30
66.67
100 25
2015
2022 2021 2020 TMCC
TMNA
55 10

2022 2021 2020 TMCC

11
TMCC TFSIC

TMcC TMCC TMcC TFSIC

T™MCC TMCC
TMNA  TFSIC TMcC T™MCC

TMCC
TMCC
TFSIC TMCC
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31
2020 2021 2022
$ (19) $ 2,756 $ 1,774
120 386 281
8 11 22
109 3,153 2,077
145 (2,243) (1,166)
(141) (276) (123)
(&) (&) 1
2 (2,521) (1,288)
$ 111 $ 632 $ 789
31
2020 2021 2022
21.0 21.0 21.0
4.0 3.9 3.7
(3.9) 0.2) 0.3
(€A)) (0.5) (1.0)
(5.6) — —
(1.0) 0.2) 0-3)
— 0.1) —
10.8 23.9 23.7
2021 2022
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)
&)
2022 31 2021 31
2022 31 2021
13 25
2022 31 2021 31
31

2021 31

2022 2021 31
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31
2021 2022
$ 2,765 $ 1,504
290 348
377 275
34 24
82 82
$ 3,548 $ 2,233
421 394
187 179
21 45
27 23
29 14
12 14
697 669
® —
$ 688 $ 669
$ 2,860 $ 1,564
2021 2022 31
2024
2032
2017
288 251
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2022 31 2021 31 TMNA
52 35
2022 2021 31 TMCC
TMCC TFSIC TFSB
31
2020 2021 2022
$ 7 $ 19 $ 15
12 1 1
— 2 6
— ) —
$ 19 $ 15 $ 22
2022 2021 2020 31 22 14 17
2022 2021 2020 31
2022
12
2022 2021
2020

2022 31 2018 2022 IRS
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12
31
2020 2021 2022
$ 2,065 $ 1,997 $ 1,746
$ (59) $ (113) $ (75)
$ 96 $ 117 $ 99
$ 181 $ 173 $ 168
$ 26 $ 18 $ 3
$ 102 $ 01 $ 82
2021 31 2022 31
$ 6 $ 100
$ 196 $ —
$ 140 $ 90
$ (1,156) $ (875)
$ (236) $ (212)
$ (1,528) $ (923)
$ 869 $ 789
$ 83 $ 80
$ 352 $ 374
$ 306 $ 394
$ 19 $ 8
TMCC  TMNA 2022 2021
31 TMNA 66 184
TMNA
2022 31 2021 31

TMNA

157/313



2021
TMCC TFS
TMCC
T™MCC
TFS
TCPR TMCC
TMCC
8.5
2025 5.0
31
T™MCC
TFSB
2022
2021 11 TFC
T™MCC
2022 TMCC
TMcC

TFSIC

T™MCC
TFS T™MCC

TFS T™MCC
2022 2021

8.6
2021 1.0
TFC 100
2021 31
2023 11

TFSCO 49

T™MCC

158/313
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700
TFS
TFS
31

™S

2022

8.0 7.1
2021
2021
0.0175

TFSCO

oOoOooodn

2021

250
TMCC

100
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oOoOooodn
TMCC
TMCC TFSB TMCC  TFSB
60
2022 2021 31 TMCC
15

TMCC

TMCC TMNA

TMCC TMNA
TMCC
TMCC  TFSB TFSB TMCC TFSB
TMCC  TFSB TMCC TMCC TFSB
TMCC TFSB TFS TMCC
TMCC
TMCC

TMCC T™MS TFS

TMCC TFSB 2021 TMCC TFSB

TMCC TCPR TMNA

TMCC  TMNA

2032 CSC 2029

2026
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TMCC

TMCC

TMNA

™IS

13

TMCC

TMNA
10
TMNA

TMCC

TMNA

™IS

TMNA

™IS

TMNA
TMNA

99
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2022 2021 31 120
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2021 31

209 $ 2 $ — $ — $ 211
— 10 — — 10
20 176 — — 196
— 187 — — 187
— 32 — — 32
— — 1 — 1
— 5 42 — 47
— 19 33 — 52
229 431 76 — 736
772
2,429 — — — 2,429
883 — — — 883
3,312 — — — 4,084
3,541 431 76 — 4,820
— 1,026 — — 1,026
— 330 — — 330

— — — (1,302) (1,302)
— 1,356 — (1,302) 54
3,541 1,787 76 (1,302) 4,874

— (1,142) — — (1,142)

— (243) — — (243)
— — — 1,384 1,384

— (1,385) — 1,384 @
3,541 $ 202 % 7% 8 82 $ 4,873
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2022 31

$ 504 $ 5 % — $ — 3 509
— 23 — — 23
— 10 — — 10
_ 568 — — 568
— 20 — — 20
— 7 3 — 10
— 78 8 — 86
— 75 3 — 78
504 786 14 — 1,304
1,137
1,576 — — — 1,576
936 — — — 936
2,512 — — — 3,649
3,016 786 14 — 4,953
— 1,425 — — 1,425
— 55 — — 55

_ — — (1,419) (1,419)
— 1,480 — (1,419) 61
3,016 2,266 14 (1,419) 5,014

— (822) — — (822)

— 717) — — 717)
_ _ — 1,514 1,514

— (1,539) — 1,514 (25)
$ 3,016 $ 71 % 14 $ 95 $ 4,989

2022 2021 31

2022 2021 31
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2021 31
$ 65,808 % — % — $ 69,007 $ 69,007
6,132 — — 6,158 6,158
5,142 — — 5,224 5,224
2,154 — — 2,171 2,171
$ 85513 % — $ 86,206 $ 555 $ 86,760
24,212 — — 24,478 24,478
2022 31
$ 72,369 % — % — $ 73,385 $ 73,385
2,940 — — 2,931 2,931
4,985 — — 4,91 4,91
2,256 — — 2,171 2,171
$ 82,288 $ — $ 80,980 $ — $ 80,980
26,864 — — 26,500 26,500
TMCC
2022 2021 31

90 140

166/313
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14

™IS

2020 31
$ 12,029 $ — $ — $ 12,029
6,820 — — 6,820
2,854 — (20) 2,834
2,355 — 20 2,375

— 933 — 933

155 187 (20) 322
2,510 1,120 — 3,630
590 — — 590
1,197 364 — 1,561

— 455 — 455

1,787 819 — 2,606
723 301 — 1,024

39 72 — 111

$ 684 $ 229 $ — $ 913
$ 121,180 $ 5,520 $  (1,145) $ 125,555

2021 31

$ 11,799 $ — $ — $ 11,799
5,932 — — 5,932
2,302 — — 2,302
3,565 — — 3,565

— 956 — 956

93 317 — 410

3,658 1,273 — 4,931
426 — — 426
1,124 363 — 1,487

— 369 — 369

1,550 732 — 2,282
2,108 541 — 2,649
502 130 — 632

$ 1,606 $ 411 $ — $ 2,017
$ 127,726 $ 6,149 $ (147) $ 133,728
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2022 31
$ 11,920 $ — $ — $ 11,920
5,846 — — 5,846
1,401 — — 1,401
4,673 — — 4,673
— 1,015 — 1,015
45 71) — (26)
4,718 944 — 5,662
236 — — 236
1,311 386 — 1,697
— 405 — 405
1,547 791 — 2,338
3,171 153 — 3,324
755 34 — 789
$ 2,416 $ 119 $ — $ 2,535
$ 128,684 $ 6,510 $ (153) $ 135,041

120
2022 2021 31
82 83
2022 2021 31
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2020 31

2022
2021
2.7
2023

2022 2021

31

2021

696

31

704

™IS

753
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2.4 2.5

2022 31
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{Dollars i millions)

Years ended March 31,

2022 2021 2020
Financing revenues:
Operating lease 5 8337 § B4Rl % 8,775
Retml 3254 2.5 2,558
Dealer 129 413 696
Total financing revenues 11,920 11,799 12,029
Depreciation on operating leases 5,840 5,932 6,820
Interest expense 1401 2,302 2834
MNel financing revenings 4,673 3.565 2375
Valuntary protection contract revenues and insurance carmed premiums 1015 D56 933
Investment and other {loss) income, net ) (26} 410 32
Met financing revenues and other revenues 5,062 4931 3630
Expenses:
Proviston for credit losses 236 426 590
Orperating and administrative 1.697 1487 1,561
Voluntary protection contract expenses and insurance losses 405 364 435
Total expenses 2338 2,282 2,606
Income before income axes 33M4 2.649 1.024
Provision for income 1axes 789 632 111
Mel meome 5 25315 8§ 2017 % g13
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Dollars in millions)
~ Years ended March 31,
2022 2021 2020
Nel income 5 1535 8 2017 8 al3

Other comprehensive mncome, net of tax
MNet unrealized (losses) guns on avallable-for-sale

marketable secuntics [net of tax benefit (provisiony

of 88, (82) and (%4), respectively]| (28) 9 13
Reclassification adjustment for net gains on

available-for-sale marketable securities included m

investment and other income, net [net of tax

provision of 30, 85 and 50, respectively] iy (16} {1y
Dhher comprehensive (loss) imcome (29 (") 12
Comprehensive income 5 2506 5 20010 8 925

Refer to the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

67
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
i Dollars in millions except share data)

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents 5 7600 & K195
Restmcted eash and cash equivalents 2065 1,957
Investmenis in marketable securities 4,953 4 820
Finance receivables, net of allowanee for credit losses of $1.2460 and
51178 52432 ™. 192
Investments in operating leases, nel 35,455 37,091
Other assels 2466 2473
Total assets 5 135041 § 133 728
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
[acht 5 1M,152 5 109,725
Defermed income taxes 1,564 2,860
Other liabilities . 6,224 5,548
Total liabilities 116,940 118,133
Commitments and contingencies {Refer o Note 9)
Sharcholder's equity:
Capital stock, no par value (100,000 shares suthoreed; 91,500 1ssued

and outstanding) at March 31, 2022 and 2021 913 915
Addiional paid-in capaial 2 2
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) moeome 213 8
Retaned camings 17,205 14,670
Total shareholder's equity 18,101 15,595
Total hakilities and sharcholder's equay 5 135041 5 133,728

The following table presems the assets amd liabilities of our consolidated variable interest entitics (Refer (o Note ¥),

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021

ASSETS

Finance recevables, net 5 20932 5 21,745
Investments in operating leases, nel 11,880 0,599
Other assets 60 b
Total assets 5 32834 S 28,433
LIABILITIES

Dcht 5 6864 % 24212
Cither habihines 11 |4
Total liabilinies 5 26874 5§ 24 226

Refer 1o the accompanyimg Notes o Consolidated Fimancial Statements.

6E
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Balance at March 31, 2019

Net income
Cher comprebensive meome, net of tax
Balance at March 31, 2020

Cumulative-efTect of adoption of ASL 2006-13
MNet income

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Ihvidends

Balance at March 31, 2021

Net ineome
Otiher comprehensive loss, net of tax
Balance at March 31, 2022

i Dollars in maillions)

Accumulated

Additional other
Capital paid-in comprehensive  Retained
stock capital mcome (loss)  camings Tval
5 915 § 23 38 124658 § 133578
- - - 913 913
- - 12 - 12
5 915 § 5 15 § 13571 § 14503
- . . (218) (218)
a - - 2017 2017
- . {7 - (7)
) 3 (700) (700}
5 415 § 28 8 § 14670 § 15595
- - - 2,535 2,535
- - 29) . (29)
5 915 § 25 (21)8 17205 S 18101

Refer o the accompanyving Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
i Dollars i mallions)

Years emded March 31,

2023 2021 2020
Cash [fows from operating activilies:
Met income s 2535 § 2017 8 913
Adjustments o reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Diepreciation and amortization 5.963 6,040 6,930
Recogmnon of deferred mcome (2.3%) (2.496) {2.485)
Provision for credit losses 236 426 S04
Amortieation of deferred cosis [RURY TED o7
Foreign curreney and other adjustments to the carmying value of
linancial instruments, nel (2300 1. 401 (515)
Met losses (gains) from investmenis in marketable securitics 181 (149} {47}
MNet change in:
Dernvative asscls (T} (3 [t
(ther nesets nnd sccrued inlerest (465 142 (482
Dieferred income 1axes {1.288) (2,521} 2
Dervative hnbilities 24 [EEN] 19
Oither liabilities - 632 1
Met cash provided by operating activitics . 6,224 6,243 5,704
Cash lows frod mvesting activities:
Purchase of investments in marketable sccurities (2. 468) (2.215) (2,392)
Proceeds from sales of investments in marketable secuntics 1,76 422 345
Proceeds from matunities of investments in marketable securiiies i3% 932 1,200
Acquisition of fmonce receivables (41,057} (38,702} {29,375}
Collection of finance receivables 34,335 28,009 25,608
Net change in wholesale and cerim working capatal receivables 3.33% 4,793 (2]
Acquisition of investments in operating leases (15,064 ) (16778} (15,330}
Disposals of investments in operating leases 12,510 11,821 11,775
Long term loans to affiliates (200} (200 [LLL D]
Payments on long term boans from affiliates 1 5006 25
Met change in financing support provided to affiliotes {26) - -
Other, nel (1) (79} (41
Met cash used in investing setivitics (6.295) (11.491% (8.757)
Cash flows from financing sctivities:
Proceeds from ssunnce of debt 37,206 50,281 26,847
Paymenis on debi (38,156 (3648 {23,375)
Met ¢F|III.'IF,E i comimercinl paper amd otler diori-terin ﬁnum.‘ins 155 t'J.lH.‘;I} 1.861
Loan from affilime - - ERLL
Payment on loan from affilise - {3.000) -
Met change in finoncing support provided by aifilintes (11} (13) 14
Ividend pard - (T (14}
Met cash {used m) provided by linancing nctivities {346) 6,871 4,330
Met (decrense) incrense in cash and eash equivalents and restmicted cash and
cash equivalents (417} 1 423 5,346
Cash and cash equivalents and restncted cash and cosh equivalenis at the
beginning of the period 10,152 8,529 3,183
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at the
e of the period 5 9,735 3% 10,152 § #.529
Supplensenta] disclosures:
Ieterest paid, pet £ 1649 % 2445 5 2,568
Income taxes paid, net 5 1,797 § 2463 § 2649

Refer to the accompanying Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)
MNote 1 — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Tovown Motor Credit Corporation TMOCT) 15 a whollv-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial Services Intemationasl
Corporation (“TFSIC™), a Californin corporation, which is o wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial Services
Corporation (“TFSCT), a Japanese corporation. TFSC, m tum, 15 a wholly-osned subsidiary of Tovota Motor
Corporation ("TMC™), a Japancse corporation.  TFSC manages TMO s worldwide financial services operations.
References herein to the “Company™, “we”, “our”, and “us” denote TMCC and its consolidated subsidiaries. TMCC is
marketed wnder the brands of Toyota Finencial Services, Lexus Financial Services, and Maxda Financial Services.

We provide a vanety of finance and voluntary vehicle and payment protection products and services (o authoneed
Tovota and Lexus dealers or dealer groups, private label dealers or dealer groups, and, o a lesser extent, other
domestic and import franchise dealers (collectively referred to as “dealers”™) and their customers m the United States ol
Amenica (excluding Hawan) (the “LL5.") and Puerto Rico, Our business 15 substantially dependent upon the sale of
Fovota, Lexus, and private label vehieles.

Our products and services fall prnmarnily into the following categories:

. Finance Operafions - We acquire retul mstallment sales contracts from dealers m the ULS. and Puerto
Rico (“retml contracts™) and leasing contracts accounted for as operating leases (“lease contracts™) from
dealers in the LS. We collectively refer to our retail and lease contracts as the “consumer portfolio.” We
also provide dealer fmancing, including wholesale hinancing, workmg capial loans, revolving lines of
credit and real estate linancig o dealers i the 1LS. and Puerto Bico. We collectively refer 1o our dealer
financing porfolio as the “dealer portfolio.”

. Vofuntary Protection Operations - Through Toyota Motor Insuranee Services, Ine., a wholly-owned
subsidiary, and its insuranee company subsidiaries {collectively referred o as “TMIS™), we provide
marketing, underwniting, and claims admimistration for voluntary vehicle and payment protection products
sold by dealers in the U8, Our voluntary vehicle amd payment protection products include vehicle service,
puaranteed auto protection, prepaid maintenance, exeess wear and use, tire and wheel protection, key
replacement protection, and wsed vehicle mited warranty contracts (“voluntary protection products™),

IMIS also provides coverage and related administrative services to certain of our affiliates i the U5,

Our finance operations are located in the U5, and Puerto Rico with eaming assets principally sourced through Tovota,
Lexus, and private label dealers. As of March 31, 2022, approximately 22 percent of rets] and lease contracts were
coneentrated in California, 12 percent in Texas, 7 percent in New York, and § percent in New Jersey. Our voluntary
profection operations are located in the U.S. As of March 31, 2022, approximately 235 percent of voluntary protection
contracts were concentrated m Califome, 6 percent in New York, and 5 pereent in Moryland and Virginia,
respectively, Any material adverse changes 1o the economies or applicable laws i these states could have an adverse
¢lfect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Fi|
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

ther Maffers

In fiscal 2021, TMCC began providing private label (inancial services 1o third-party automotive and mobility
companies commencing with the provision of serviees 1o Mazda Motor of America, Inc. (“Mazda™). We are currently
levernging our exasting processes and personnel o ongmate and service the new assets; however, we will conlinue to
cviluate the private [abel financial services business, which includes parnenng with or transitioning a portion of the
business to our atliliates, some of which are not consolidated with TMOC. We have also made certain technology
mvestments o support the Magda program and future povate label customers.

In fiscal 2021, we announced the restructuring of our customer service operations (o beller serve our customers by
relocating and streamlining the customer service operation and imvesting in new technology. The restructuring is i
progress and over the next vear, we plan to complete the process of moving our three regional C3Cs o be co-located
with the regional [¥5C5 to become regional expenience centers. Costs associated with this restruciure are not expected
to be significant.

On November 19, 2021, TMCC annourced, in furtherance of its private label financial services initiative for third
party automotive and mobility compamies, that we entered nto a nonbinding letter of intent with Great American
Chtdoors Group LLC, the parenl company of Bass Pro Shops, Cabela’s and the White River Manne Group (“Bass Pro
Shops™) o provide private label financial services for Bass Pro Shop's boats, all-temrain vehicle products, and other
mohility products, The Company expects to provide inventory financing for Bass Pro Shops, its affiliates, and
authorized independent dealers, starting in Gscal 2023, wath additional private label services, including consumer
financing wnd voluntary protection products and services, to be added over time.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation amd Significant Accounting Policies {Confinued

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidaiion

Cur accounting and financial reporting policies conform (o accounting prneiples generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US. GAAP™). Related party transactions presented i the Consolidated Financial Statements are
disclosed i Note 12 - Related Party Transactions.

e comsolidated Mnancial statements inchede the accounts of TMOC, its wholly-owned subsidiarics and all vanable
interest entities (“VIE") of which we are the primary beneficiary. All intercompany transactions and balances have
Been climinated.

Use af Extimuates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U5, GAAP requires management o make cstimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
habalities at the date of the Tmancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses duning the
reporting penod,  Beeause of inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual resulis could differ rom those
estimates and assumptions,  The accounting estimates that are most impontant 1o our business are the accumulated
depreciabion related fo our mvestments i operating leases and the allowanee for credit Josses,

Significant Accounting Policies

Chur signalicant accounting pohicies are found m the respective Note for which the policy is apphicable.

Recently Adapted Accounting Guidance

In hiscal 2021, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU) 2006-13, Financial Instriments — Credit Losses
{(Topic 3126); Measurement of Credit Losses om Fimancial Instenmenis (“ASL 2006-13"), along with the subsequently
issued guidance amending and clanifying various aspects of ASU 2016-13_ using the modified retrospective method as
required. In accordance with that method, the comparative penod’s infommation continues Lo be reported under the
relevant accounting guidance in eflect for that penod. Upon adoption of ASU 2006-13, the incumed loss impaimment
mcthod was replaced with a new impairment model that refleets lifetime expected losses for our finance receivables.
The adoption of ASU 2016-13 resulted in o cumulative-effect adjustiment to decrease opening retained camings by
approximately 5218 nullion, net of taxes, resulting from a pretax merease o our allowsnce for credil losses on finance
receivables of approximately 3292 million, Additionally, we have changed the presentation of accrued imterest related
to finanee receivables in the Consalidated Balance Sheets from Finance receivables, net to Other assets. As of April 1,
2020, we have reclassificd acerued mterest of $190 million from Finance receivables, net o Other assets. The
adoption of this new guidance did not result i a material impact 1o our available-for-sale debt seeunties portfolio,

Refer to Note 2 = Investments in Marketable Securities, Note 3 = Finance Receivables, Net, and Note 4 - Allowance
for Credit Losses for addinonal mformation,

In compunction with the adoption of ASU 2016-13, we updated our depreciation policy for operating leases so thal the
usefl life of the vehicles incorporates our historical experience on carly terminations due to customer defaults. As a
result, we changed the presentation for reporting early lermmation expenses reloted (o customer delaulis on
mvestments m operating leases. We now present the effeets of operating lease carly termmations as part of
sccumulated depreciation within Invesiments in operating leases, net in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
Depreciation on operating leases in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The comparabive penod’s milormation
continues o be reported under the relevant accountimg presentation m elTect Tor that penod, Refer o Note 5 -
Investments in Operating Leases, Net for additional information.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued)
On Apnl 1, 2021, we adopted the following new accounting standards:

We adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASL™) 2020-04, Reference Rate Refarm (Topic 848); Facilitation of the
Effects af Reference Rate Reform on Finaneial Reporting, along with the subsequently issued guidanee, which
provides temporary optional expedients and exceptions for applying generally accepled accounting principles to
transactions affected by reference rate reform af certam cntena are met. The provisions of ths update are avalable o
s until December 31, 2022, The adoption of this guidance did not have 3 material impact on our consolidated
tinancial statements and related disclosures.

We adopted ASU 2020-08, Codiffcation fnprovements fo Sulvopic 210-20, Receivables-Nowrefundable Fees and
Chher Cosis, which requires an entity to reevaluate the amortization period for callable debt securities held at a
preminm each reporting peniod.  The premium is amortized to the earliest call date of the debt security. The adoption
of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consohidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Accounting Guidance Issued Bur Not Yet Adopred

In July 2021, the FASB ssued ASU 2021-03, Lessors-Certain Leaxes with Variable Lease Paymenes {Tapic 842,
which modifies the lease classification for certain leases. Lessors should elassify and sceount For a lease with variable
lease payvments that do not depend on o reference index or rate as an operating lease i certam coteria are met. Ths
ASL s effeetive for us on Apnl 1, 2022, wath carly apphication penmitted. The adopuon of this gudance will not have
o material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2022, the FASH issued ASU 2022-02, Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt Restruetrings and Vintage
Digelosnres, which eliminates the accounting guidance for Troubled Debt Restructurings by ereditors that have
addopied ASU 2006-13, Financial fnstruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326). Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Inseemments, while enhancing disclosure requirements for certaim loan refinancing and restructunngs made
to bormowers expeniencing Onancial difficulty. Additionally, the ASL adds the requirement to disclose current period
gross write-offs by year of origination for financing receivables. This ASU is effective for us on Apnl 1, 2023, with
carly application permtied. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standand on our consolidated Tinancial
statements and related disclosures.

74

177/313



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooooood
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in Marketable Secorities

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents represent highly liquid investments with mamntics of three months or less from the date of
acquisition and may mclude money market instruments, commercial paper, eenificates of deposit, U8, govemment
and agency obligations, or sunilar instriments,

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents include customer collections on secunitized receivables to be distributed 1o
mnvestors as payments on the related securad notes and loans payable, which are primarily related 1o securnitization
trusts, Restricted cash equivalents may also contam procecds from cenam debt issuances for which the use of the cash
is restricted.

Investments in marketable securities
Investments in marketable securities consist of debt securities and equity imvestiments.

We classify all of our debt secunitics as available-for-sale (“AFS"), Except when the fair value option is clected, AFS
debt securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains or losses included in sccumulated other comprehensive
income (“AOCET), net of applicable taxes. Realized gains and losses from sales of AFS debt secunties are determined
using the specific ientification method or first i fiest out method and are meluded i Investment and other income,
net in our Consolidated Statements of [ncome.

In fiscal 2021, we adopted ASU 20016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topie 326): Measurement of Credic
Losses on Finaneial nstrrmenis, on a modihed retrospective basis. Under the pew guidance, an allowance for credit
losses is established when it is determined that a eredit loss has occurred. Prior to the adoption of this standard, when
a decline in fair valee of a debt secunty was determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment charge for the
credit component was recorded in Investment and other mcome, net and a new cost basis in the investment was
established. As of March 31, 2022, manasgement determined that credit losses did not exist for securities inoan
unrealized loss position. This analysis considered a variety of factors including, but not linsited to, performance
indicators of the issver, default rtes, mdustry analyst repoants, credit ratmgs, and other relevant mformation, which
indicated that contractual eash Nows are expected o oecur,

In fiscal 2022, we have elected the fair value option for centain debt securnities held wiathin one of our affiliate
imvestment portfolos for operational ease given the siee and composiion of this portfolio, All debt secunties withm
this specific portfolio are recorded at e value with changes i for value meluded m Investment and other income,
net in our Consolidated Statements of Income. AFS debt securities for which the fair value option is elected are not
subject to credit loss imparrment. As of March 31, 2022, we held AFS debt secunties for which the fwr value option
was elected of 5674 million. The difference between the aggregate for value and the aggresate unpaid principal
halance of long-term AFS debt securities for which the fair value option was elected was not significant.

All equity investments are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value ineluded in Investment and other income,
net i our Consolidated Statements of Income. Realized gams and losses from sales of equity investments ane
determined vsing the first in first out method and are meluded in Investment and other income, net m our Consolidated
Statements of Tneome.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

MNaote 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Invesiments in Marketable Securities (Continued)

Investments in marketable secunties consisted of the fnllowang:

March 31, 2022
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
cosl _gains losses vitlug
Avalable-lfor-sale debl secunties:
LS. government and agency obligations s 538 § - 8 (29} § Sk
Forcign government and agency obligations 26 - (3) 23
Municipal debi securities 9 | . ]
Corperate debt securities 598 4 (34) 568
Muorgage-backed securiiies:
1S, government agency 20 - - 20
Nom-agency residential 1 - (1) 1]
Mon-agency commercial L | (3 Hh
Asset-backed securities 82 - i4) T
Total available-lfor-sale debl securitees s 1,372 § 6 8 (74) § 1,304
Eaquity mvestmenis 31,649
Total mvestments in marketable secunties 5 4,953
) March 31, 2021
Amortirzed  Unrealized  Unrealized Faur
sl gaimns lissis value
Available-for-sale debt secunities:
LS. government and agency obligations g 217 5 4 5 {10y % 211
Municipal debt securities £ 2 - 1y
Commercial paper 196 - B 196
Comporate debt scountics 177 12 (2) | BT
Morgage-backed securities:
LIS, governmeni agency il | - 32
Non-agency residential I - B 1
MNon-agency commercial 47 2 (2) 47
Asset-backed secuntics 49 L] - a2
Total available-for-sale debt securities & 20§ 24 (14) % T36
Exquity mvestments 4,084
Total investments in marketable secunties ] 4,520

A portion of our equity investiments are investments in fands that are privately placed and managed by an open-end
investment management company (e “Trust”). IF we elect to redeem shares, the Trust will normmally redeem all
shares for cash, but may, in unusual circumstances, redecm amounts exceeding the lesser of 5230 thousand or |
percent of the Trust's asset value by payment in kind of securities held by the respective fund during any 90-day
preriod.

We also mvest i actively traded open-end muteal funds. Bedemptions are subject o normal terms and conditions as
deseribed in each fund's prospectus.

Non-cash mvesting activities related to n-kind redemptions and subsequent purchases amounted wo S1.1 billion
fscal 2022 We had no non-cash mvesting activities related o m-kind redempiions i fiscal 20210,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)

MNote 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in Marketable Secuorities (Continued)

Unrealized Losses on Securities

Available-for-sale debt secunties ina comtimuons loss position for greater than twelve months were not sigmificant as
of March 31, 2022 and 2021.

Craviny amel Losves on Securities

The following table represents gams and losses on our investments in marketable secunties presented i our
Consolidated Statements of Income:

Years ended March 31,
2022 2021 2020
Available-for-sale debi secunties:
Unrealized losses on - scounties for which the
fair value option was elected bt [E1N]
Realized (losses) gains on sales 5 4 s 20 % 9
Other-than-temporary impairmen s %)
Equity imvestments:
Unrealieed (lossesy gains 5 (158) § 114 % 4]
Realized gams on sales b 2 5 15 % 5

Controctial Manirities

The amortized cost and fur value by contractual maturities of available-for-sale debt securilics are summarized in the
following table. Actual maturities may differ from contractual matunties becanse cenaim borrowers have the nght 1o
call or prepay eertain obligations.

March 31, 2022

Amortized cost Fair value

Available-Tor-sale debt secunties:

D within 1 vear 8 59 8 53

Do after | vear through 5 vears 378 a7

[z after 5 wears through 10 years 3% R

Due after 10 years 339 330

Morgage-backed and asset-backed securities ! 201 194
Tostal b3 1,372 8§ 1.304

! Mongage-backed and asset-hacked seeurities ane shown separately from other maturity groupings as these securities have
multiple maturity dates,

T
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in millions)
Note 3 — Finance Receivahles, Net

Finance recewvables, net consists of retal loan and dealer products portfohio scgments, and meludes deferred
origination costs, defemred income, and allowance for credit losses. Finance receivables, net also includes securitized
retail receivables. which represent retail recervables that have been sold for legal purposes to securitization trusts but
continue to be meluded m our consolidated fmancial statements, as discussed further in Note 8 - Vanable Inferest
Entities, Cash Mows from these seeuntized retanl receivables are available only for the repayment of debt issued by
these trusts and other obligations ansing from the securitization wansactions. They are not available for payment of
our other obligations or o salisfy claims of our other creditors,

Finance receivables are classified as held-for-imvestment if the Company has the intent and ability 10 hold the
receivables for the foreseeable future or until mawnty or payofl. As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, all finunee
recervables were classified as held-for-mvestment.

Fevenues associated with retil and dealer linancing are recognized to approximate a constant efTective yield over the
contract term. Ineremental direct fees and costs ineurred in connection with the acquisition of retail contracts and
dealer Nnancing recervables, including meentive and rate participation payments made o dealers, ave capitalized and
amortized o approximate a constant efTective yiehd over the term of the related contracts. Payments received on
subvention and other consumer incentives are deferred and recognized 1o approximate a constant effective vield over
the term of the related contracts,

Accrued interest related 1o finance receivables are presented within Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
and was 5214 million and 5187 mullion at March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

For both retail loan and dealer products portfolio segments_ acerved interest, deferred meome, and deferred origination
costs, if any, are written of U within Provision for credit losses at the earhier of when an account 15 deemed 10 be
uneollectible or when an aceount is greater than 120 days past due,

Finance receivables, net consisted of the followimng:

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021

Retail receivables ! 5 73,152 8 i, 55|

Dealer financing 10,298 13,642

823 450 633

Deferred ongination cosis 1.330 1,145
Deferred income (1,102) (1.408)

Allowance for credn losses

Retail receivables (1,195} (1,075}
Dealer financing (51 (103
Total allowance for credit losses (1,246) (1,178)

Finance receivables, net s #2432 S8 79,192

b Inglusdes seeunitized retnl receivables of $21.2 hillion and 5221 billion as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,

T8
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MNote 3 — Finance Receivables, Net (Continued)
Credit (Quality Indicators

We are exposed to credit risk on our finance receivables. Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the failure of
customers or dealers to meet the terms of their contracts with us or otherwise fail o perform as agreed.

Rewail Lean Parifolio Scgment

The retwl Toan portfole segment consists of one class of linance receivables. While we use various credit qualiny
meetries o develop our allowance for credit losses on the retal loan portfolio segment, we primanly utiliee the aging of
the individual accounts 1o monitor the eredit quality of these finance receivables, Based on our experience, the
payment status of borrowers is the strongest indicator of the credit quality of the underlying receivables. Payment
status also mmpacts charpe-offs

Individual borrower accounts within the reta] loan portfohio segment are segregated into aging categones based on the
number of days past dwe. The aging of finance receivables is updated monthiy.

The following tables present the amortized cost basis of our retmi] loan portfolie by ongination (iscal vear by credit
quality indicator based on number of days past due:

Amortized Cost Risms by Oigimalion Fiscal Year af Masch 31, 2022

are a1 TR 2014 1k 30117 and Price Total
Agang of finance recervablies
it L] 33387 L] Iy 5 0,624 L1 4.7 5 1674 5 TIH L1 T nEn
1055 days. past due 74 £ 153 101 3 10 513
089 days past doe & #2 an L] I 1 M
0 davs o greater past diie 3 b 17 13 i 7 n7
Total 5 3TEE 5 12342 8§ 4R 4911 % 1760 5 172 % 73350

Amortized Cost Basas by Ongination Fiseal Year at March 31, 2021

2l 020 019 lois 3017 T4 and Priot Toal
Agang of fimance receivahles
Curent 3 2 5 Hhod? %5 2497 % 4977 0§ 2455 % 406 5 At uas
3050 days past dme 147 145 4 LE] Ll xn k7]
A% dys past dise n 30 ® 21 11 ] 144
fH0 days o groaler past duo I8 18 13 L 5 L] L)
Tl § 12228 % 16240 § U 8 1L . 1407 5 537 § 6 TIR

The amortized cost of retail loan porfolio excludes acerued interest of $192 million and S160 mallion at Magch 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, The previous tables include contracts greater than 120 davs past due, which are recorded
it the fair value of collateral less estimated costs 1o sell, and contracts in banknupey.

7%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MNote 3 — Finance Reccivables, Net (Continued)

Dealer Products Porifalio Segment

The dealer products portfolio sepment consists of three clusses of finance receivables: wholesale, real estate and
working capital. All loans owstanding for an individual dealer or dealer group, which ineludes alTiliated entities, are
ageregated and evaluated colleetvely by dealer or dealer grongp, This reflects the interconnected natire of Timancing
provided to our individual dealer and dealer group customers, and their afliliated entities.

When assessing the eredit quality of the finance receivables within the dealer products portfolio sepment, we segregate
the fmanee recervables sccount balances mio four categories representing distinet eredit quality mdicators based on
internal nsk assessments. The intemal nsk assessments for all finance recervables within the dealer products portfolio
segment are updated on a monthly basis.

The four credit quality indicators are:
. Performing — Account not classified as enther Credint Watch, At Risk or Default,
. Credn Wateh — Account designated for elevated altenbon;

. Al Risk — Account where there 15 an increased likelihood that defaull may exist based on gqualitative and
quantitative factors; and

* Drefault — Account is not currently meeting contractual obligations or we have temporanly waived certain
contraciual requirements

The following tables present the amortized cost basis of our dealer products portfolio by eredit quality indicator based
on anternal risk assessments by orngmation Oscal vear:

Amorizred Coad Pasis by Onganasion Fieeal Year si March 31, 3033

207 el
e 5 b (1] HH pLil L] is Prior HRevoedving loans. Tatnl
Whedesale
Performing 1 I | - % - 3 « ¥ I | - 5 197 5 2907
Credi Walch - - . - . - 10 1
At Hisk = - : - - = - -
Ihefauls - - = a - - - =
Whidesale woial £ = % | - % = - = % - % 2oay % T
Real estaie
Performung 3 L4 5 L24F 3 4§ LL S | e 5 1,245 § = 5 5012
Credit Waich 2 . - 5 - 7
A Rk = = = = = = = =
Tefaul - - - - - - -
Heal gsrae toal 5 Ll L3 | 244 5 24 5 kL] ] 2 5 1,250 5 - 5 010
Working Cagpiis]
Pexforming 5 662 5 m s w5 138 3§ 7 s L E N M S 1384
Credit Waich | ] . . . . B 2
At Risk - - -
Defaul - - - - - - - -
Working capital ioeal 3 L a5 e 5 152 5 i 5 LiCE S s - =336
Tertal 3 2278  § |S6T  F 473§ 3§ 97§ 1433 § 3717 0§ 10298
s = == S
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MNote 3 — Finance Reccivahles, Net (Continued)

Amsortared Coat Basis by Oviganaiion Frecal Year si March 31, 303§

2016 el
Lol HW e IR 2017 Pris  Revolvingloans  Toml

Whelesale

Peaforming H - 5 = 5 . 5 . § - 5 = 5 SB35 S.E03

Crodit Wialch - - . . - - 118 218

Ai Bk - - - - - = kR 35

Defaul - - - . = - Ll L

Wholesale ioia] § P i s % i § £ g s ok 6157 % 6157
Real estaie

Porforming ] 1874 ¥ Ha 3 i 0§ e ¥ 2 ¥ L L - % 4,951

Credit Walch H Ei 1 0 9 9 . 1.1}

At Risk 13 = - - 12 17 * 42

Defauls - - - ] & - - 22

Real estate wotal ] La0d 8 w8 L I W s 42 8 L600 & - 8 A3
Working Capaisl

Peorforming ] S04 5 a5 a5 al ¥ (11 . 176§ KR § rlek] ]

Credit Walch 1 . & 1 . 1% L L1

Ar Risk [ - - - T - - H

Thefaul - . - . - - - -

Waorking capal 1ntal ] 305 L 4 5 os § 42 § 113 L s 5 BT & 2,282
Tead 5 40§ WEO§  sE 0§ FET 455 05 B4 s 44§ 136

The amortized cost of the dealer products portfolio excludes aconied interest of $22 million and 527 million at March
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, the amount of line-of-credit arangements that are
converted 1o term loans i each reporting period was msigmibicant, respectively.

|

184/313



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooooood
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in millions)

Mote 3 — Finance Reccivables, Net (Continued)
Past Due Finanee Receivables by Class

Substantially all finance recervables do not involve recourse to the dealer m the event of customer defanlt. Finance
receivables include contracts greater than 120 days past due, which are recorded an the Gur value of colluteral less
estimated costs W sell, and contracts i bankruptey. Contracts Tor which vehicles have been repossessed are exclided,
For all finance receivables, we define “past due” as any payvment, incleding principal and mterest, that 1= at least 30
days past the contractual due date. For any customer who is granted a payment extension under an extension program,
the aging of the recervable is adjusted for the number of duys of the extension granted,

The following tables presents the aging of the amortized cost basis of our linance receivables by class:

March 31, 2022

90 Drays or
30- 59 o0 -89 90 Days or greater past

Dhays ks greater Total Past Total Fiance  due and

pastdue  pastdue  past due duse Current  receivables  accruing
Retail loan b 932 § 242 § 17 5§ 1291 § 72089 3 73380 8 03
Whaolesale = = < - 2043 2043 =
Real estate - - - - 5009 5009 -
Waorking capial - - - - 2,336 2,336 -
Total 5 932 § 242 § 17T 5 1.2 5 82387 § HIGTE S 65

March 31, 2021

90 Days or
-5 60-89 90 Days or greater past

Drays Days greater Total Past Total Finonce  due and

past due  past due  past due due Cumrent receivables aceruing
Retail loan % 62 S 144 % 09 % 775 § B5953 § 66,728 % a9
Wholesale - - - . 6,157 6,157 -
Real estate - - - - 5,203 5,203 -
Working capital - ~ - - 2983 2,282 -
l'otal b 562§ 144 % 69 % 7758 To595 8 0370 % 19
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MNote 3 — Finance Receivahles, Net (Continued)

Troubled Debf Resirvcturing

A moubled debi restructuring oceurs when a finance receivable is modified through a concession 1o & bomrower
experiencing finaneial difficulty. A finance receivable modified under a troubled debt restructuning is considered 1o be
wpaired, In addition, roubled debt restricturmgs mclude Tinanee recevables for which the customer has hiled Tor
bankmiptey protection. For such finance receivables, we no longer have the ability o modify the terms of the
agreement without the approval of the bankruptey court and the count may impose term modifications that we are
obligated to accept.

For accounts not under bankruptey protection, the amount of finance recervables miodi fed as a troubled deby
restructunng during fiscal 2022 and 2021 was not significant for ench class of finance receivables. Troubled deln
restructurings for accounts not under bankruptey protection within the retml loan class of finance receivables are
comprised exclusively of contract temm extensions that reduce the monthly payvment due from the customer. For the
three classes of finance receivables within the dealer products portfolio segment, troubled debt restrueturings include
contract tenm extensions, mterest rate adjustments, waivers of loan covenants, or any combination of the three.
Troubled debt restructunngs of accounts not under bankruptey protection did not melede forgiveness of pnncipal or
interest rate adjustments dunng Ascal 2022 and 2021,

We consider finance receivables under bankmptey protection within the retmil loan class 1o be troubled delw
restructunings as of the date we receive notiee of a customer filing for bankruptey protection, regardless of the ultimate
oateome of the bankrupley proceedings. The bankrupicy courl may impose modifications as part of the proceedings,
including interest rate adjustments and forgiveness of principal. For fiscal 2022 and 2021, the financial impact of
troubled debt restructurings related o nanee receivables under bankmpley proteciion was nol significant o our
Consolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated Balance Shects.,

For a limited time during fiscal 2021, we offered several programs to provide relief to customers during the COVID-
19 pandemic. These programs, which were broadly available 1o our customers, ineluded retail loan payment
extensions and lease payment delerrals. We concluded that these progroms did not meet troubled debt restructuring
criteria due 1o the short-term nature of the modifications with no change in the contractual interest rate. To provide
reliel for our dealers we offered cenain temporary interest reductions, interest payment deferrals, and interest waivers
on dealer Noarplan Gnaneing, and principal payment deferrals on dealer Moomlan lnancing, dealer resl estate and
workmg capital loans, We also concluded that these programs did not meet troubled debt restructunng crteria as the
finance receivables from the dealers were current.
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Note 4 = Allowance for Credit Losses

Upon adoption of ASL 2016-13 in fiseal 2021, the meumed loss impaimment method was replaced with a new
impairment model that reflects lifetime expected losses. Mamagement develops and documents the allowanee for
credit losses on finance receivables based on two portfolio segments. The determination of portfolio segments. is
hased prmanly on the qualitanve consideration of the nare of our business operations and the charactensnies of the
underlying finance receivahles, as follows:

. Retail Lean Portfelio Segment — The retail loan portfolie segment consists of retail contracts acquired
from dealers in the 1S, and Puerto Rico. Under a retail coniract, we are granted a secunity interest in the
underlying collateral which consists primanly of Towvotn, Lexus, and private label vehicles, Based on the
common risk characteristics associated with the finance receivables, the retail loan portfolio segment is
constdered o single class of finance receivable.

. Dealer Products Portfolio Segmient = The dealer products pontfolio segment consists of wholesale
financing, working capital loans, revalving lines of credit and real estate loans to dealers in the U5, and
Puerie Rico. Wholesale financing is primarily collateralized by new or used vehicle inventory with the
outstanding balance fluctuating based on the level of inventory. Working capital loans and revolving lines
of credit are granted for workmg capital purposes and are secured by dealership assets, Real estate loans
are collateralized by the underlying real estate, are underwnitten primanty on a loan-lo-value basis and are
typically for a fixed term. Based on the risk characteristics associated with the underlying finance
receivables, the dealer products portfolio segment consists of three elasses of linance receivables:
wholesale, working capital (including revolving lines of credit), and real estate

Management's estimate of lifetime expected credit losses is based on an evaluation of relevant information about past
events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the future collectabality of the finance
receivables, Munagement’s evaluation takes mto consideration the risks in the retail loan port folio and dealer products
portfolio, past loss experience, delinquency trends, underwnting and collection practices, changes in porttolio
composition, cconomic forecasts and other relevant factors,

Methodology Used to Develop the Altowance for Credit Losses

e allowanee for eredit losses is measured on a collective basis when loans have similar nisk charactenstics.  Loans
that do not shire similar risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. We generally wse a discounted eash
Noww approach for determimimng allowance for credit losses for (inance recervables modifed as a roubled debt

restructunng that are granted with interest rate coneessions, and a non-discounted cash Qow approach for other loans.

We measure expected losses of all components of finance receivables on an amortized cost basis, excluding ncerued
itterest, and mcluding off-balance-sheet lending commitments that are nod uncondiionally cancellable by TMOC,
Estimated expected credit losses for ofl-balance-sheet lending commitments within our dealer products porifolio are
included in Other linbilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We have elected to exclude accrued interest from the
measurement of expected credit losses as we apply policies and procedures that result in the tmely write-ofTs of
acerued mterest, Acerived mterest 15 written of 7 within allowanee for credit losses at the earlier of when an sccount is
decmed to be uncollectible or when an account is greater than 120 days past due,

Retail Loan Porifolio Segnrem

Ihe level of eredit risk in our retail loan ponfolio segment is influenced by various factors such as economic
conditions, the used vehicle market, credit quality, contract structure, and collection strategies and practices. The
allowance For crednt losses s mensured on a collective basis when loans have simlar sk charaetenstics such as loan-
to-value ratio, book payment-to-income ratio, FICO score at origination, collateral type, contract term, and other
relevant factors. We use statistical models 1o estimate lifetime expected eredit losses of our retail loan portfolio
segment by applyving probability of default and loss grven default to the exposure at default on a loan level basis

Probability of default models are developed from miemal nisk scoring models which consider variables such as
delinguency status, historical default frequency, and other credit gquality indicators such as loan=to=value ratio, book
pavment-lo-meome ratio, FICO score ol ongmation, collateral type (new or used, Lexus, Toyots, or prvate label), and
conirael enm.
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Note 4 = Allowance for Credit Losses (Continued)

Loss given default models forecast the extent of losses given that a default has occurred and considers vanables such
a5 eollateral, rends in recoveries, historical loss sevenity, and other contraet structure vanables. Exposure at default
represents the expected outstanding principal balance, including the effects of expected prepayment when applicable.

The lifetime expected credit losses incorporate the probability-weighted forward-looking macrocconomic forecasts for
baseline, favorable, and adverse seenarios. The loan lifetime is regarded by management as the reasonable and
supporiable peniod. We nse macrocconomic Torecasts from a third party and update such forecasts quanterly,

On an ongoing basis, we review our models, mcluding macroeconomie factors, the selection of macroeconomic
seenarios and their weighting to ensure they reflect the risk of the portfolio.

IF management does not believe the models reflect lifetme expected credit fosses, a qualitaiive adjustment 15 made o
reflect management judgment regarding observable changes in reeent or expected cconomie trends and conditions,
portfolio composition, and other relevant factors. While management uses the best information available to make such
evilwations, future sdjustments to the allowance for credit Tosses may be necessary il conditions difTer substantially
from the assumptions vsed m makmg the evaluations,

Dealer Products Portfolio Segment

The bevel of credit risk m our dealer products portfoho segment 15 infleenced primanly by the financial strength of
dealers within our portfolio, dealer concentration, collateral quality, and other economic factors. The linancial
strength of dealers within our portfolio is influenced by, among other factors, general cconomie conditions, the overall
demand for new and vsed vehicles and the financial condition of automotve manufcturers. The allowance for credin
losses is established for both ewstanding dealer finance receivables and certain unfunded off-balance sheet lending
commilments. The allowance for eredit losses is measured on a collective basis when loans have similar risk
charsctenstics such as dealer group intemal nsk mting and loam-to-value rmnes, We measure lifetime expected credi
losses of our dealer products pontfolio segment by applving probability of default and loss given defanlt o the
exposire at default on a loan level basis. Probability of default is primarily established based on imtemal risk
assessments, The probability of default model also considers qualitative factors related (o macrocconomic

outlocks, Loss given default is established based on the nature and market value of the collateral, loan-to-value ratios
and other credit quality indicators. Exposure at defaull represents the expeeted outstanding principal balanee. The
lifetime of the loan or lending commitment 15 regarded by management as the reasonable and supportable penod, On
an ongoeing basis, we review our models, mcluding macroeconomie outlooks, 10 ensure they reflect the nsk of the
portfiolio.

IF mamagement does not believe the models reflect lifetmme expected credit losses, a qualitative adjustment 15 made to
rellect management judgment regarding observable changes morecent or expecied economie trends and conditions,
portfolio composition, and other relevant factors. While management uses the best information available 1o make such
evaluations, future adjustments 1o the allowance for credit losses may be necessary if conditions difTer substamially
from the assumptions used m makmg the evaluations,

Acconnting for the Allowance for Credit Losses

Increases to the allowance for credit losses are accompanied by corresponding charges to the Provision for credit
losses in our Consolidated Statements of Income, The uncollectible portion of Dnance receivables is charged 1o the
allowanee For credit losses al the carlier of when an aceount 1s deemed 10 be uncollectible or when an account is
greater than 120 days past due. In the event we repossess the collateral, the receivable is charged-off and we record
the collateral at its estimated fair value less costs to sell and report it in Other assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Recovenices of finance receivables previously charged ofl as umeollectible are credited to the allowance for
credit losses.
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Note 4 — Allowance for Credit Losses (Confinued)

The following tables provide information related 10 our allowanee for credit losses Tfor finance receivables and certan
off-balance sheet lending commitments by portfolio scgment:
 Year ended March 31, 2022

Retml loan  Dealer products Todal
Beginning balance, Apnl 1, 2021 5 1075 § 140 % 1.215
Charge-olTs (237) - (237)
Recoveries SR = utad
Provision for credit fosses 299 i63) 26
Ending balance, March 31, 2022 ! b 1,195 § 77 % 1,272

' Ending balance includes £26 million of allowance for credit losses relwted 1o ofl-balonee sheet commitments i the dealer
products porifolie which is inchsded in Other liabilities on the Consolidmed Balance Sheet

Year ended March 31, 2021

Retail loan  Dealer products Tval
Beginming balance, Apnil 1, 2020 5 486 8 21 5 727
Adoption of ASU 2006-13 ! 281 I M2
Charge-olTs (287) - (287)
Reécovenes AR 9 57
Prowision for credit losses 547 (121} 426
Ending balance, March 31, 2021 ¢ 5 1075 8 140 % 1,215

' Cumulative prestox adjustments recorded o retained camings as of Aprl 1, 2020
* Ending balance includes $37 million of allowance for credit losses related to off-balance sheet commitments in the dealer
products pomfolio which is mcluded in Other hiabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Finmance receivables for the dealer products portfolio segment as of March 31, 2022 includes 3929 million in finance
receivables that are guaranteed by Toyota Motor North America, Ine. (" TMNAT), and 5187 mullion in finance
recervables that are guaranteed by third-party private Toyota distnbutors, Finance recervables For the dealer products
portfolio segment as of March 31, 2021 includes 51,028 million in finanee receivables that are guaranteed by TMNA,
and 5162 millien in Anance receivables that are guarantecd by thard-party private Toyota distributors. These linance
receivables are related o certain Toyota and Lexus dealers and other thied parties to whom we provided fnancing a1
the request of TMNA and third-party private Toyola distributors.

During hscal 2022, the allowance for credit losses mereased 557 milhion pnmanly due o the merease m siee of our
retail loan portfolio and an mcrease in delinguencics, as well as the cconomic conditions cansed by the conflict in
Ukraine, partially offset by continued improved dealer financial performance in fiscal 2022, In contrast, in fiscal
2021, the allowance for credit losses moreased 5488 mmllion, reflectmg an merease to the allowance Tor credit losses of
£292 million related 1o the adoption of ASU 2016-13 in fiscal 2021, and an merease of $196 million primarily due to
an inerease in the size of the portfolio and the increase in expected eredit losses for the retail loan portfolie driven by
economie condions caused by the COVID-19 pandenme and the restnictions designed 1o slow the spread of COVID-
19, including stay-at-home orders, increased unemployment, and decreased consumer spending.
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Note 5 = Investments in Operating Leases, Net

Investments in operating leases, net consists of vehicle lease contracts acquired from dealers, and mcludes deferred
origination fees and costs, deferred income, and accumulated depreciation. Generally, lessees have the ability o
extend their lease term in six month increments up to a total of 12 months from the onginal lease maturity date. A
lease can be terminated at any time by satisfying the obligations under the lease contract. Early tennination programs
may be occasionally offered to eligible lessees. At the end of the lease, the customer has the option 1o buy the leased
vehicle or return the vehicle o the dealer.

Secuntided mvestments m operating leases represent benelicial interests i a pool of centam veliele leases that have
been sold for legal purposes to sccuntization trusts but continue o be included i our consolidated financial stalements
as discussed further in Note 8 - Vanable Interest Entities. Cash flows from these securitized investments in operaling
leases are available only for the repayment of debt issued by these trusts and other obligations ansmg from the
securitization transactions.  They are not available for payment of our other obligations or 1o sansty cliims of our other
creditors,

Operating lease revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term ol the lease. We have made an
accoumting pohey clection to exclude from the consideration in the contract, and from varable payments nod ineluded
in the consideration in the contract, sales and other taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are both imposed
om and concurrent with a specific lease revenue-producing iransaction and collected from customers. Deferred fees
and costs include imcentive payments made o dealers and sequsition fees collected from customers. Deferred income
includes payments reecived on affiliate sponsored subvention and other incentive programs, Both deferred fees and
costs and deferred income are capitalized or deferred and amontized on a straijght-line basis over the contract term.
The scerunl of revenue on investments m operating leases i discontinued at the tme an sccount 15 determined o be
uncolleetible and subsequent revenue is recognized only to the extent a payment is reccived. Operating leases may be
restored o acerual status when fiuture payments are reasonably assured.

Vefricle Lease Residwal Valwes

Contractual residual values of vehicle lease contracts are estimated at lease inception by examining external industry
data, the anticipated Toyata, Lexus, and private label product ppeling mnd our own expenience. Factors considered in
this evaluation include macrocconomic foreeasts, new vehicle pricing, new vehicle incentive programs, new vehicle
sales, vehicle features and specifications, the mix and level of used vehicle supply. the level of current used vehicle
values, and fuel prces. We are exposed to a nisk of loss o the extent the customer returns the vehicle and the value of
the vehiele 15 lower than the residual value estimated at inception of the lease or il the number of returned vehicles 15
higher than anticipated.

Depreciation on operating leases is recopnized usimg the strught-hine method over the lease term. The depreciable
Trasns s the omgimal acquisiion cost of the vehicle Jess the estimated residual value of the vehicle at the end of the
lease term. On a quarterly basis, we review the estimated end-of=term market values and return rates of leased
wvehiches to assess the appropristencess of the carmying values of lease-end. Factors alfecting the estmated end-of-term
market valie are similar (o those considered i the evaluation of residual valoes at lease meeption discussed above,
Adustments o depreciation expense o reflect revised estimates of expected market values at lease tenmination and
revised refurn rates are recorded prospectively on a straght-line basis over the remaming lease erm

W use vanous channels to sell velieles returned of lease-end. Upon disposition, the difference between the net book
value of the lease and the proceeds received from the disposition of the assct, including any insurance procecds 15
recorded as an adjustment to depreciation on operating leases.

We evaluate our investment in operating leases portfolio for potential impainnent when we determine a inggenng
cvent has occurred, When a inggering event has occumred, we perform a test of recoverbility by comparing the
expecied undiscounted future cash fows (including expected residual values) over the remaining lease terms o the
carrying value of the asset group. 17 the test of recoverability identifies a possible impaimment, the asset group’s fir
value is measured in accordance with the far value measurement framework, An impaimment charge would be
recognized for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset group exceeds its estimated fur valve and would be
recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Income. As of March 31, 2022 apd 2021, there was no impaiment i our
investment in operating leases portfolio,
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Note 5 — Investments in Operating Leases, Nei (Continued)

Chur depreciation policy for aperating leases imcorparates our historical expenience on early termmations due 1o
enstomer defanlts into the useful live of the vehicles. We consider the effects of operating lease carly terminations
when determining depreciation estimates, which are ineluded as part of aceumulated depreciation within Investments
m operating leases, net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Depreciation on operating leases i the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Investments in operating leases, net consisted of the following:

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
Investments in operating leases ! 5 45728 8 48,337
Deferred ongination ({ fees) and costs, net (463 (100}
Deferred income (1,272} (1,759
Accumulated depreciation (B.955) {9,386 )
Investments in operating leases, nel b 15455 § 37.091

U Includes secuntized investments i operating leases of 516.2 hillion and %3 hillion as of March 31, 2022 and
March 31, 202 1. respectively.

Future mimimum remtals on investmenis in operating leases are as follows:

Future minumum

Years ending March 31, rentals on operating leases

2023 5 5,604
2024 3,620
2025 1.073
2026 83
2027 B
Thercalter -
Total 5 10,388

A portion of our operating lease contracts has lstorically terminated prior o matunty. Folure minimum rentals shown
abowve should not be considered indicative of future cash eollections.
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Mote 6 — Derivatives, Hedging Activities and Interest Expense

Derivaiive Instrements

Ciar liabilities consist mamly of fixed and vanable rate debt, denominated in LS. dollars and vanous other curmencies,
which we issue in the global capital markets, while our assels consist primarily of U5, dollar denominated, fixed rate
recervables, W enter mto mterest rate swaps and foreign cirrency swaps to economically hedge the mierest rate and
foreign currency risks that result from the different charactenstics of our asscts and liabilities. Our use of derivative
tramsaetions is intended to reduce long-term fuetuations in the fair value of assets and linbilities eaused by marker
movements. Allof our denvativies are categonieed a6 not designated for hedge accounting, and all of our denvative
activities are authorized and monitored by our management and our Assct=Liability Commitice which provides a
framework for financial controls and governance 1o manage market nsk.

All derivative mstruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, taking mio consideration the effects ol
legally enforceable master netting agreements that allow us to net seitle asset and liability positions and offset cash
collateral with the same counterparty on a net basis. Changes in the far value of our denvative imstruments are
recorded in Interest expense m our Consolidated Statements of Income. The derivative mstriments are included as a
compment of Cither assets or Other habalites on ouwr Consohdated Balance Sheets,

(Mfsetting af Derfvatives

Accounting puidance permits the net presentation on ouwr Consolidated Balance Sheets of denvative receivables and
dervative payvables with the same counterpanty and the related cash collateral when o legally enforceable master
netting agreement exists, or when the dervative receivables and derivative pavables meet all the conditions for the
right of setoff 1o exist. When we meet this condition, we elect 1o present such balances on a net basis,

(hver-the-Connter (“OTC") Derivatives

Our International Swaps and Dervatives Association Master Agreements are our master netting agreements which
permit multiple transactions to be cancelled and settled with a simgle net balance paid to enther party for our OTC
dervatives, The master netting agreements also contaim reciprocal collateral agreements which require the transfer of
cash collateral to the party in o net assel position across all ransactions. Our collateral agreements with substantially
all owr counterparties include a zero threshold, full collateralization armangement. Although we have daily vahation
and collateral exchange arrangements with all of our counterparties, due o the nme required o move collateral, there
miy be a delay of up o one day between the exchange of collateral and the valuation of our derivatives. We would
not be required to post additional collateral to the counterparties with whom we were in a net liability position at
March 31, 2022, af our credit ratings wene to decline, simee we fully collateralize without regard to credit ratings with
these counterparties. In addition, as our collateral agreements include legal right of offset provisions, collateral
amounts are netted against derivative assets or derivative liabilities, and the net amount is included in Cther assets or
Oher Labilines on our Consolidated Balance Sheets,

Centrafly Cleared Derivatives

For our centrally cleared dermvatives, vanation margin payments are legally charsctenised as settlement payvments and
accounted for with comresponding derivative positions as one unit of account as opposed to collateral. Initial margin
payments are separately recorded in Oiher assets on our Consohdated Balanee Sheets. We perform valuation and
margin exchange on a daily basis. Similar (o the OTC swaps, there may be a delay of up 1o one day between the
exchange of margin payvments and the valuation of our denvatives,
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Nate 6 — Derivatives, Hedging Activities and Interest Expense (Continued)

Derivaiive Activity Impact on Consoliduted Financial Statements

The following tables show the financial statement line item and amount of our denvative assets and habilities that ane
reporied on our Consohidated Balance Sheets:

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Fair Fair
Motional value Motional valie
Other assets:
Interest rate swaps £ 64327 % 1425 8§ 44,125 % 1026
Foreign currency swaps 1,594 35 1274 330
Total 8 6592 S 1480 5 51,399 § 1,356
Counterparty netting (761} (840
Collateral held (658 (462 )
Carrving value of denivative contracts = Other assets % 6l b 54
Other liabilities:
Interest mie swaps 5 19903 % 822 5 55062 % 1,142
Foreign currency swaps N e 717 4321 243
Total £ RN % 1,539 8 59383 § 1,385
Counterparty netting (761 (H400)
Collateral posted {(753) (544)
Carrymg value of denvative contracts — Other
liabilitics 5 25 b |

As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, we held exeess collateral of 52 mallion and 529 millon, respectively, which we did
i use o offset dervative assets and was recorded in Other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, As of
March 31, 2022 and 2021, we posted imbal margim and exeess collateral of 5132 milhon and 510 mlhon, respectively,
which we did nol wse 1o ol Tset denvative habalities and was recorded m Othier assets on our Consoldated Balance
Sheets.

a0

193/313



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooooood

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Nate 6 — Derivatives, Hedging Activities and Inferest Expense (Continued)

The following table summarizes the components of interest expense, meluding the location and amount of gains and
losses on derivative instruments and related hedged items, as reported in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Years Ended March 31,

2022 2021 20240

Interest expense on debt £ 1498 % 1954 § 2488
Interest expense on denvatives 7 420 L&D

Imterest expense on debt apd denvatives 16005 2374 2668
(Cinins) losses on debt denominoted in
foreign currencies (438) L. 402 {703}
Losses {gaims) on foreign currency swips 318 (1,351) 650
(Cimins) losses on LS. dollar muerest rate swaps (584) (123} 219
Total interest expense ] L4018 232 § 2834

Interest expense on debt and derivatives represents net imterest settlements and changes in accruals. CGaans and losses
on derivatives and debt denominated in foreign eurrencies exclude net interest settlements and changes in aceruals,
Cash Mows associated with denvatives are reported in Met cash provided by operating activities in our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows,

|
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Note 7 = Debt and Credit Facilities

Debt and the related weighted average contrmetual interest mies are summanzed as follows:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Weighted Weighted
average average
Face Carmyving  confraciual Face Camying  confraciual
value  wvalue  interestrates  wvalue  value  interest rates
Unsecured notes and loans pavable § 82,542 § 52 288 1.30% S B5.759 § 85513 1.31%
Secured notes and loans payable 26907 26,804 1.01% 24256 24212 1.29%
Total debi S 109449 5 109,152 1.23% S 110,015 § 109,725 L.31%

The carrying value of our debt meludes unamortized preminms, discounts, debt issuance costs and the elfects of
foreign currency translation adjustments. Debit issuance costs are delemed and amoriveed o interest expense on an
effective vield basis over the contractual term of the debr.

Weighted avernge contractunl interest rates are caleulated based on original notional or par value before consideration
oo premium or discount and approximate the effective interest mies,

et is callable at par value, Scheduled matunitics of our debt portfolio are summanized below, Actual repayment of
seeured debt will vary based on the repayment activity on the related pledged assets.

Future

Years ending March 31, debt matunties
2023 5 31171
2024 20,889
2025 13,466
2026 9,042
2027 1279
Thereafter ! TAH2
Unamortized premiums, discounts and debd issuanee costs (297}
Total deb 5 109,152

! Unsecured and secured notes and loans payable mature on varous dates through fiscal 2049,

Unsecured Notes and Loans Payable

Our unsecured notes and loans payable consist of commercial paper and fixed and variable rote debt. Short-tenm
funding needs are met through the ssuance of commercial paper in the 115, Amounts outstanding under our
commercial paper programs were 816,49 billion and $17.0 bilhon as of March 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Upon issuanee of lxed rate debt, we generally elect to enter imto pay-float swaps to convert fixed rate payments on
debt 1o floating rate payments. Certain unsecured notes and loans payable are denominated in various foreign
currencies, The debit s translated mto ULS. dollars using the apphicable exchange rate ot the transachion date and
retranslated at each balance sheet date using the exchange rate i eflect o that date, The resulting (ransaction gains
and losses are ineluded in Interest expense in our Consolidated Statemenms of Income. Concurrent with the issuance of
these foreign currency unsecured notes and loans payable, we enter into currency swaps mn the same notionsl amount
to conver!t non-US, curmrency pavments o UL, dollar denominated payments, Gains and losses related (o forcign
currency transactions are included in Interest expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Certmin of our unsecured noles and loans pavable contmn covenants and conditions customary in transsctions ol this
nature, including negative pledge provisions, cross-delanlt provisions and limitations on certain consohdations,
mergers and sales ol assets. We are cumrently in compliance with these covenants and conditions.
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MNote 7= Debit and Credit Facilities (Continwed )
Secured Notes and Loans Payable

Or sgcurcd notes and loans payvable are denomimated in U5, dollars and consist of hoth [ixed and vanable rate deba,
Secured notes and loans payable are issued using on-balance sheet securitization trusts, as further discussed in Note 8
— Vanable Interest Entibes. These notes are repayvable only from collectons on the underlying secunitized retml
finanee recevables and the beneficial interests in investments in operating leases and from related credit
enhaneements. Some of our seeured notes are backed by a revolving pool of linance receivables and cash collateral,
with the abality to repay the notes i full after the revalving penod ends, afler which an amortization period begins,

Credit Facilities and Letters of Credit

For additional liguadity purposes, we mamtam credit Tacilies, which may be used for peneral compomte purposes, as
deseribed below:

Aad-Day Credit Agreament, Three-Year Credit Agreement and Five-Year Credit Agreement

TMOC, Toyota Credit de Puerto Rico Corp. (' TCPR™), a whollv-owned subsidiary, and other Tovota affiliates ane
party toa $3.0 billion 364-day syndieated bank credit facility, $5.0 billion three-year syndicated bank credit facility
and a 5.0 hlhon (ve-year syndicated bank credit Beility, expinng i hscal 2023, 2025, and 2027 respectively.

The abiliy to make draws is subjeet o covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, incleding
negative pledge provisions, eross delault provisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers and sales off
assels. These agreements were not drawn upon and had no owtstanding balanees as March 31, 2022 and 2021, We are
currently m compliance with the covenants and conditions of the eredit agreements described above

Commitied Revelving Asset-backed Facilite

We are party 1o a 364-day revolving secuntization Geility with certam bank-sponsored asset-backed condints and
other financial institutions expiring in fiscal 2023, Under the terms and subject 1o the conditions of this facility, the
commitied lenders under the facility have commnted to make advances up o a facility limut of 37.0 hllon backed by
chigible retml hinance recevables ransferred by us to o special-purpose enlity acting as borrower, We ntilieed 532
billion of this facility as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Chlver Unsectred Credit Agrecments

TMOC is party to additional unsecured eredit facilities with various banks. As of Mareh 31, 2022, TMCC had
committed bank eredit faeilitics totaling $4.6 billion, of which $2.3 billion, 3300 million, and $2.0 billion matre in
fiscal 2023, 2024, and 2025 respectively

These eredit agreements contaim covenants and conditions customary i fransachons of this nature, mcluding negative
pledge provisions, cross=defanlt provisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers and sales of assets.
These credit [facilines were not drvwn upon and had no outstanding balinees as of Muarch 31, 2022 and 2021, We are
currently in compliance wath the covenants and conditions of the credit agreements desenbed above

TMOC is party to a 55.0 billion three-year revolving credit facility with Tovota Motor Sales, US.AL Ine. (“TMS™),
expiring in fiscal 2025, Thas eredit facility was not drawn upon and had no outstanding balance as of March 31, 2022

and 2021,

From time 1o time, we may borrow from affilistes based wpon a mumber of business factors such as funds availability,
cash flow timing, relative cost of funds, and market access capabilities. Amounts borrowed from affiliates are
recorded in Chher liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 8 — Variahle Interest Entities

A VIE 15 an entity that either (1) has msufTicient equity 1o permt the entity (o finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support or (i) has equity investors who lack the charactenstics of a controlling linancial
interest. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is the party with both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most
sagmifcantly smpact the VIE"s economic perfommance and the obligation 1o absorh the losses or the nght to receive
benefits that could potentially be sigmificant o the VIE,

l'o assess whether we have the power 1o direct the activities of a VIE that most sigmficantly impact its economic
performance, we consider all the facts and corcumstances meluding our role m estabhshing the VIE and our ongomg
nghts and responsibiliies. This assessment includes identifying the activitics that most signilicantly impact the VIE s
economic performance and identifying which party, if any, has power over those activities. In general, the pany that
makes the most significant decisions afTecting the VIE 15 determmed (o have the power to direet the acthivities of the
VIE. To assess whether we have the obligation 1o absorh the losses or the right 1o receive benelis that could
potentially be significant to the VIE, we consider all of our economic interests, including debt and equity interests,
servicing nghits and fee arrngements, and any other vanable mterests in the VIE, 7 we deteromne that we are the
party with the power 1o make the most sigmificant decisions affecting the VIE, and we have an obligation 1o absorh the
losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE, then we consolidate the VIE.

We perform ongoing reassessments, usually quarterly, of whether we are the primary beneficiary of o VIE. The
reassessment process considers whether we have acquired or divested the power to divect the most signiflicant activities
of the VIE through changes in govermning documents or other cireumstances. We also reconsider whether entitices
previously determined nod to be VIEs have become VIEs, based on new events, and therefore could be subsject 1o the
VIE consolidation framework.

Consolidated Variable Interesi Entities

We use one or more special purpose entities that are considered V1Es to issue asset-backed securnities 1o third-party
bank-sponsored asset-backed secuntization vehicles and 1o mvestors in securitization lransactions,  The securities
issued by these VIEs are backed by the cash Qows related o retml] fnance receivables and beneficial mterests in
investments in operating leases (“Secuntized Assets™). We hold variable interests in the VIEs that could potentially be
sigmificant to the ViEs, We determaned that we are the primary benelionary of the secunitization trusts becawse (1) our
servicing responsibilitios for the Securitized Assets give us the power to direct the activities that most sigmfcantly
impact the performance of the VIEs, and (1) our vanable interests in the VIEs give us the ohligation to absorb losses
and the right 1o receive residual retumns that could potentially be significant.

The follovwing tables show the assets and habihities related w our VIE secuntization transsctions that were mcluded on
our Consolidated Balanee Shects:

March 31, 2022

VIE Assets VIE Liabihties
Met
Restricted securitized Oiher Ciher
cash assels assels el labilities
Retm] finance receivables 5 1284 § 092 5 51 8§ 18562 % B
Investments in operating leasis 645 11886 15 B30z 2
Tistal ] 1929 § 32818 3 o S 26804 % 11}

March 31, 2021

VIE Asscts VIE Liabilitics
Net
Hestreied securitized {hher Oiher
cash HECTCES asscls Dein liabilities
Retail finanee receivables 5 1.521 § 21,745 8 a6 5 19665 S 13
Investments in operating leases 436 6, 5949 43 4,547 |
I'otal 5 1,957 8§ 28344 8 By 5 24212 % 14
04
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MNote § — Variable Interest Entities ({Continued)

Restneted cash, including cash equivalents, shown i the previous tables represent collections from the underlymg Met
securitized assets and eertain reserve deposits held by TMOC for the VIEs and is included as part of Restricted cash
and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Net securntizaed assets shown in the previous tables are
presented net of defered fees and costs, defared mcome, accumulated depreciation, and allowanee for credn losses.
Oither assets represent acerued imterests related (o secunitized retail finance receivables and used vehicles held-for-sale
that were repossessed by or returned to TMOC for the benefit of the VIEs. The related deln of these consolidated
VIEs 15 presented net of 51,667 mallion and S1,409 mullion of sccunties retamed by TMOC at March 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, Other habilities represent acerued interest on the debt of the consalidated VIEs.

I'he assets of the VIEs and the Restricted eash and cash equivalents held by TMOC serve as the sole source of
repayment for the asset-backed secunties ssued by these entities. Tnviestors m the notes ssied by the VIEs doonot
have recourse 1 us or our other assets, with the exception of customary representation and warranty repurchase
provisions and indemmnities,

As the primary beneliciary of these entities, we ane exposaed to eredit, residual value, interest rate, and prepayment risk
[roam the Securitized Assets inthe VIEs. However, our exposune o these risks did not change os a result of the transfer
of the assets w the VIEs. We may also be exposed to interest rate risk ansing from the secured notes issued by the
Vilks.

In addition, we entered into interest mate swaps with certmn special purpose entities that 1ssue vanahle rate debt,

Under the terms of these swaps, the special purpose entities are obligated to pay TMOC a lixed rale of interest on
certain payment dates in exchange for receiving a floating rate of interest on notional amounts equal to the outstanding
balance of the secured debl This arrangement enables the specal purpose entilies to mitigate the mterest rate nsk
inherent m issuing vamable rate debt that 15 seeured by Axed rote Sccuniized Assets,

I'he transfers of the Sccuritized Assets to the special purpose entities in our securitizations are considered to be sales
for legal purposes. However, the Securitized Assets and the related debt remmin on our Consolidated Balanee Sheets,
We recognize finaneing revenue on the Secunitized Assets and interest expense on the seeured debl issued by the
special purpose entitics. We also maintain an allowance for credit losses on the securitized retail finance receivables
using a methodology consistent with that used for our non-securitized asset portfolio. The interest mte swaps between
TMCC and the special purpose entities are considered mtercompany transsctions and therelore are eliminated i our
consolidated financial statements.

Nom-consalidated Variable Interest Enfities

We provide lending to Tovota and Lexus dealers through the Tovotas Dealer Investment Group”s Dealer Capatal
Program (“TDIG Program™) operated by our affiliate TMNA, which has an equity interest in these dealerships.
Dealers participating in this program have been determined to be VIEs. We do not consolidate the dealerships in this
program as we are not the primary beneficiary and any exposure to loss is limited to the amount of the credin facility.
Amounts due from these dealers under the TDIG Program that are classified as Finance recervables, net on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2022 and 2021, and revenues earned from these dealers during liscal 2022,
2021 and 2020 were not sigmficant.

We also have other lending relationships which have been determined 1o be VIEs, but these relationships are not
comsolidated as we are not the primary beneficiary. Amounts due from these lending relationships at March 31, 2022
and 2021, and revenues camed under these relatonships during fiscal 2022, 2021, 2020 were not significant.

95

198/313



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooooood
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in millions)
Note ¥ — Commitments and Contingencies

Commifmrents and Guaraniees

We have entered into certam commitments and guarantees for which the maximum unfunded amounts gre summanzed
1 the table below:

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021

Commuitments:

Credit facilities commitments with dealers bt 1280 % 2338

Commitments under operating lease agreements 114 141
Total commitments 1408 2479

Ciuarantees of affiliate pollution control and solid waste disposal bonds ] 100 Ry
Total commitments and guaranices & 3508 & 2579

Whaolesale financing 15 not considered to be a contractual commtment as the arrangements are not binding
arrangements under which TMCC is required 1o perform

Commitrenis

We provide fixed and variable rate working capital loans, revolving lines of eredit, and real estate finameing o dealers
and various multi-frnchise organizations referred 1o s dealer groups for feilities construction amd refurbishment,
working capital regquirements, real estate purchascs, business acquisitions and other general business purposes. These
loans are typically secured with liens on real estate, vehicle mventory, and/or other dealership assets, as appropriate,
andd may be gusranteed by individual or corporate puarantess of alfiliated dealers, dealer groups, or dealer principals.
Although the loans are typically collateralized or guaranteed, the value of the underlving collateral or guaranices may
not be sufficient 1o cover our exposure under such agreements. Our pricing reflects market conditions, the competitive
evironment, the level of support dealers provide our retal, lease and voluntary protection business and the eredit
worthiness of each dealer. Amounts dravwn under these facilities are reviewed for collectability on a quanerly basis, in
conjunction with our evaluation of the allowance for credit losses. In addition 1o the total commitments and
puarantecs in the previous table, we have also extended credit laeilities to afTiliates as deseribed in Note 12 — Related
Party Transactions.

Lease Cammitments

Cur operating lease portfolio consists of real estate leases. Total operating lease expense, including payments o
alliliates, was 832 mullion for fiscal 2022, S36 mullion for Gscal 2021, and 836 million fscal 2020, We have a lease
agreement through August 2032 with TMNA for our headquarters facility in Plano, Texas. Commitments under
operating lease agreements in the table above include 384 million and $93 million for facilities leases with affiliates at
March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Lease terms may contam renewal and extension options or carly wrmination features, Generally, these options do nm
impact the lease term because TMOC is not reasonably certain that it will exercise the options.  These lease
agreements do nol impoese restrictions on our ability o pay dividends, engage in debt or equity linancing transaclions
or erer mio further lease agrecments, nor do they have residual value guarantees. We exclude from our Consolidated
Balance Sheets leases with a term equal to one year or less and do not separate non-lease components from our real
estate leases.
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Naote ¥ — Commitments and Contingencies {Continued)

Chur commitments under operating lease agreements are summarnzed below:

March 31,

Years ending March 31, 2022

2023 5 19
2024 16
2025 14
2026 13
2027 12
Thereafter 45
Total b L1
Present value discount (13}
Total operating lease lability b | (0

Operating lease labilines and right-of-use ("ROUT) assets are recogmized al the lease commencement date based on
the present value of the future mmimum lease payments over the lease term, As the nlerest mte implicit i the lease
contract is typically not readily determinable, we utilize our incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date for the duration of the lease term.

The following table provides additional information related to operating lease apreements for which we are the lessee:

March 31,
2022

ROLT assets g 97
Weighted average remaiming lease term (in years) 83
Weighted average discount rate 2. T6%
Supplemental cash Tow mlormation

Cash pard for amounts meluded e the measurement of

lease liahilities - operating cash Mows b 26

Givarantees and ifver Confingencies

IMCC has guaranieed bond obligations totaling 5100 million in pnncipal that were issued by Putnam County, West
Wirgmia and Gibson County, Indiann to finance the construction of pollution control facilities at manufactunng plants
of certain TMCC affiliates. The bonds mature in the following fiscal years ending March 31; 2028 - 520 million; 2029
= S50 million; 2030 - $10 million; 2031 « $10 million; and 2032 « $10 million. TMOC would be required 1o perform
under the guarantees in the event of non-payment on the bonds and other related obligations. TMCC is entitled 1o
reimbursement by the applicable affiliates for any amounts paid, TMOC receives a nominal annual fee for
guaramecing such payvments. TMOC has not heen regquired to perform under any of these atfiliate bond guarantees as
of March 31, 2022 and 2021.
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Nate % — Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Indemmification

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into agreements containing indemmnification provisions standard in the
industry related 1o several types of transactions, including, but not limited o, debt funding, denvatives, scountization
transactions, and our vendor, supplier and service agreements, Performance under these indemmaties would generally
oceur upon a breach of the represeniations, warranties, covenants or other commitments made or given in the
agreement, or as a resull of a third-party elaim. In addition, we have agreed i certain debt and denivative issuances,
and subject 1o certain exceplions, to gross-up payments due to third parties in the event that withkolding 1ax is imposed
on such payments. In addition, certain of our funding arangements may require us o pay lenders for mereased costs
v o certam changes in laws or regulations. Due to the difficalty in predicting events which could cause a breach of
the indemnilication provisions or tngger a gross-up or other payvment obligation, we are not able to estimate our
maximum expostre 1o fure pavments that eould result from elaims made under such provisions. We have not made
any material payments in the past os a result of these provisions, and as of March 31, 2022, we determined that it is not
probable that we will be required to make any material payments in the future. As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, no
amounts kive been recorded under these indemnification provisions.

Litipation amd Covernmental Proceedings

Vanous legal actions, governmental proceedings and other eluims are pendng or may be mstituted or asserted m the
firture against us with respeet 1o matters arising in the ordinary course of business. Certain of these actions are or
purport to be class action swits, secking sizcable damages and‘or changes i our business operabions, policies and
practices, Certaim of these achions are sinilar to swits that have been iled agamst other hnancial mshtutions and
captive (inance companics. In addition. we are subject to governmental and regulatory examinations, information-
gathenng requests, and mvestigations rom ime o me at the state and federal levels, [0S mherently difficult o
predict the cowrse of such legal actions amnd govemmental incguines,

W perform peniodic reviews of pending claims and actions to determine the probability of adverse verdicts and
resulting amounts of liability. We establish aceruals for legal elaims when payments associated with the elaims
heeome probable and the costs can be reasonably estmated. When we are able, we also determne estimates of
reasonably probable loss or range of loss, whether in excess of any related accred hability or where thene 15 no
acerued liability. Given the inherent uncertamty associated with legal matters, the actual costs of resolving legal
cloms and associted costs of defense may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts for which aceruals have
been established. Bascd on available information and established accruals, we do not believe it is reasonably probable
that the results of these proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a matenal adverse effect on our
consolidated lnancial condition or results o operations.

i Movember 24, 2020, the Consumer Financial Protection Burcaw (“CFPR”) issued a civil investigative demand o
the Company secking, among other things, certam mfommation relabing to the Company's vehicle and payment
profection products and credit reporting policies and procedures and reponting records. We are cooperating with the
ety and connot predict the eventual scope, duration or outcome at this tme. As a result, we are unable to estimate
the amount or range of any polential loss ansmg from this investigation.
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Note 10 = Pension and Other Benefit Plans

We are a participating employer in certain retirement and post-retirement medical care, life insurance, and other
benefits sponsored by TMNA, an affiliste. Costs of cach plan are generally allocated to TMOC based on relative
benefit costs associated with participating or eligible employees at TMOC as compared to the plan as a whole.

Defined Benefit Plan

Pror to January 1, 2005, our employees were generally eligible to participate in the Toyota Motor Sales, LS A, Ine,
Pension Plan (the *Pension Plan”) commencing on the first day of the month following hire and were vested after 5
years of continuous employment.  Effectve January 1, 2015, the Pension Plun was closed to employvess lirst emploved
or reemployed on or after such date.

Benefits payable under this non-contributory defined benefit pension plan are based, penerally, upon the employees’
years of credited service (up to a muximwm of 23 years), the highest average annual compensation (as defined i the
plan for any 60 consecutive month perrod out of the last 120 momhs of employment (the “Applicable Years™), and
one-half of eligible bonus/gift payments for the Applicable Years (recalculated 1o determine the annual average of
such nmount), reduced by a percentage of the estimated amount of secial secunty benefits

Costs allocated to TMCT for our employees m the Pension Plan and cenum other non-gqualiled plins were not
sigmilicant for fscal 2022, 2021, and 2020,

Defined Contribution Plan

Emplovees meeting centain eligibility requirements, as defined in the plan documents, may panticipate in the Toyota
Moter North Amenea, Ine. Retirement Savings Plan. Under this plan, eligible employees may elect 1o connbute
hetween | percent and 30 percent of therr ehigitble pre-tax compensation, subject (o lederal tax regulaton limits, We
match 66.67 percent of the Girst 6 percent that a participant contributes, up to 4 percent of eligible compensation.
Participants are always 100%s vested in thewr contnibutions to the Retirement Savings Plan. Employer continbutions
vest on a d-year graded schedule ot 25 percent per year. Generallby, contnbutions are funded through bi-weckly
payinents to the plan's administrator. Cenain employees hired on or after January 1, 2015, may be eligible to receive
an iddional Company contribution 1o the plan caleulated based on ther age and compensation.

TMCC employer contributions to the savimgs plan were nol signilicant for fscal 2022, 20210, and 2020,

Cither Post-Retivement Benefit Plans

Emplovees are generally eligible to participate in other post-retirement benefits sponsored by TMMNA which provide
certam medical core and hife msurance benefits to chigible retired employees. Generally, i order to be ehigible for
these benefits, the employvee must be age 55 or older with 1 or more vears of service,

Other post-retirement benefit costs allocated 1o TMOC were not significant for fiscal 2022, 2021, and 2020

202/313



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooooood
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in millions)

Note 11 = Income Taxes

We use the Liability method of accounting for meome taxes under which deferred tax assets and liabalities are adjusted
to reflect changes in tax rates and laws in the period such changes are enacted resulting in adjustments to the current
fiseal vear's provision for income laxes.

TMCC hiles a consolidated federl income tax return with TFSIC and ots subsidianes, Current and deferved fedeeal
income taxes are allocated 1o TMOC as if it were a separate taxpayer. TMCC's net operating losses and tax credits are
utilized when those losses and eredits are used by TFSIC and its subsidiaries including TMCC in the consolidated
ederal income tax retum, TMOC Gles either separale or consohdated/combined state meome tax retims wilh TMNA,
TFSIC, or subsidiarics of TMCC, State income tax expense is generally recognized as if TMOC and s subsidiancs
filed their tax returms on a stand-alone basis. In those states where TMCC and its subsidiaries join in the filing of
consolidated or combaned income tax retums, TMOCC and s subsidiries are allocated their share of the total meome
tax expense based on combined allocation/apportionment factors and separate company income or loss. Based on the
federal and state tax sharing agreements, TFSIC and TMOC and its subsidiaries pay for their share of the income Lax
expense and are rembursed for the benelit of any of their lox losses and eredits utilized i the federal and state meome
tax reurns.

I'he provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

Y ears ended March 31,
2022 2021 2020

Current
Federal 5 1,774 8 2,756 % (19)
Stule 281 386 120
Forcign 22 11 B

Total 2077 3.153 108
Deferred
Federal (1,166) (2.243) 145
Stale (123} (276) (141
Foreign 1 2] (2)

Total (1,288) (2.521) 2
Provision for income taxes 5 TED % 632 % 111

A reconcilmtion between the TS federal statutory e rate and the effective ax rate 15 as ollows:

Years ended March 31,
202 2021 2020

Provision [or meome taxes at ULS. federl stalulory tax rate 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
State amd Iocal taxes (net of federal wx benelin) 17% 31.9% 4.0%
Effect of state tax law changes f1.3% (2% (3.9)%
Federal tax credits ! (1.0Y%% (0.5)% (3.71%
Tax rate differential from tax loss camyback - - {5.6)%
Adjustment for pror vear provision (o returm difllerences (0.3 (0.2 )% (1.0Y%
{Mher, net . (0% -
Effecuve tax rale 23.71% 239% 10.8%

! The amounts in Federal tax eredits inelude 1ax benefits from foreign tax eredins, aliemative fuel vehicle eredis, plug-in vehicle

credits, and research and development eredits for fiseal 2022, 2021, and 2020,

L0
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Nate 11 = Income Taxes (Continued )

Our net deferred income tax Labiliy consisted of the following defermed tax habilities and assets:

March 31,
2022 2021

Liahilities:

Lease transactions b {1 . 2,765

Voluntary protection dealer commissions 348 200

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 275 Tl

Mark-to-market of investments in marketable securities and derivatives 24 34

Oither 82 22
Deferred wax Labilities 5 2213 % 3,548
Assets:

Prowvision for credit and residual value losses 304 421

Deferred costs and fees 179 187

Acerued expenses 45 21

Lease oblipations 23 27

Met operating loss and 1ax credit carmyforwands 14 29

Oither 14 12
Defered ax assets B34 647

Valuation allowance - (R3]
Net deferred tax assets 5 i . (RN
Net deferred mcome tax lability ' 5 L34 § 2860

! Balance includes defemed tx assets {liabilites) of 56 million and 52y million ar March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,
attnbuiable o unrealized gains or losses included i acewnmulaied other comprehensive income or boss, net. The change in this
balance s not included in 1ofal deferred tax expensc.

We have no deferred tax assets related w cumulative lederal net operating loss carry forwards at March 31, 2022 or
March 31, 2021, Wi have deferred tax assets related to cumulative state net operating loss carmy forwards of 513
million and 525 mallion at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, respectively. State net operating loss carmyforwards
will expire beginning i fiscal 2024,

We have defored tax assets related 1o federal tax credit for foreign tax of less than 51 million and 53 nullion at March
31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, respectively. The federal tax credit carryforwards will expire beginning in fiseal 2032,

The deferred tax assets related to foreign tax credit is reduced by a valuation allowance of less than 51 million at
March 31, 2022, The deferred tx assets related to foreign tax credit and state tax net operating loss carrylorwards
were reduced by a valuation allowance of 89 mllion at March 31, 2021, The determunntion of the valuation allowance
is based on management’s estimate of future taxable income during the respective camyforward periods. Apart from
the valuation allowance, we beleve that the remmmmg deferred ax assets will be realvsed m full. The amount of the
deflerred tax assets considered realvzable could be reduced 1M management s estimaltes change.

11k

204/313



EDINETOOOO
00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooooood

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Naote 11 = Income Taxes (Continued)

We have made an assertion of permanent reinvestment of eamings from our foreign subsidiary; as a result, other than
the decmed repatriation tax that is provided pursuant 1o the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, state and local 1axes have
not been provided for unremitted eamings of our foreign subsidiary. At March 31, 2022 and 2021, these unremitted
camings totaled 5288 nullion and 5251 million, respectively. Determination of the amount of the delerred s1ate and
local 1ax Liability is mot practicable, and accordingly no estimate of the unrecorded delerred state and local tax hability
is provided.

Adthough we do not [oresee any evenls causing repatniation of carmings, possible examples may melude but are not
limited to parent company capital needs or exiting the business in the foreign country.

We had an income tax payable of 852 million and £33 million for our share of the income tax in those states where we
filed consolidated or combined retums with TMNA and is subsidieries at Mareh 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
respechively. Additionally, our federal and state income tax payable or receivable from TMOC affiliated companics,
mcluding TFSIC, TFSB, and Tovota Financial Services Secunties USA Corporation, was not sigmificant for both
March 31, 2022 and 2021.

The guidance for the accounting and reporting for income xes requires ws 10 assess @y posiiions in cases where the
nterpretation of the tax law may be uncertam. The change i unrecogmized tax benelits are as follows:

. March 31,

2022 2021 2020
Balance at beginning of the year b 15 % 19 35 7
Increases related 1o positions aken during the current year 1 1 12
Inereases reconded m current year related 1o positions tlaken

duning prigr years 6 2 .

Expirations due to lapse of statute - (7 -
Balance at end of vear 5 22 5 15 % 19

At March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 approximately 822 million, $14 million and $17 million of the respective
unrecogmized tax benefits would, if recognized, have an effeet on the elfective tax rate, The remaining amounts in the
respective unrecopnized tax benelits at March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 are related to timing matiers. During fiscal
2022, 87 mullion of the net inerease in unrecognized tax benefits had an effect on the effective tax rate. We do not have
any postlions for which i is reasonably possible that the wial ameunts of unrecognized tax benelits will signilicantly
increase of decrease within 12 months.

We acerue interest, il applicable, related to uncertain income ax positions in interest expense. Statulory penalties, if
applicable, acerued with respect (0 uncertain ineome @x positions are recognized as an addition to e income tax
liability. For cach of fiscal 2022, 2021, and 2020, acerued interest was nid significant and no penaltics were accrued,

Tax-refated Contingencies

As of Mareh 31, 2022, we remained under [RS examination for fiseal 2018 through fiscal 2022,

1az
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The tables below show the financial statement hne tems and amounts meluded i our Consolidated Statements of
Ineome and on our Consolidated Balanee Sheets under various related party agreements or relationships:

Net financing revenues:
Manufncturer's sulwention and other revenues
Depreciation on operating leases

Interest expense:
Credit support fees, miterest and other expenses

Voluntary protection contract revenues
and insurance carned premiums:

Voluntary protechion contract revenues
and imsurance carned premiims

Investment and other income, net:
Interest and other meome

Expenses:
Operating and administrative

103
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Years ended March 31,

2022
1,746 %
(75) %
Y 5
168 &
L1
B2 %

021
1.997
(113)

17

91

L

2020
2065
(59}

06

151

26
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Note 12 = Related Party Transactions (Continued }

March 31, Mareh 31,
2022 2021

Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents

Commercial paper 5 V. [
Investments in marketable sccurities

Commercial paper ] - & 196
Finance receivables, net

Accounts receivable 5 M5 144

Deferred retanl subwvention mcome 5 (875} % (1,156)
Investments in operating leases, net

Investments in operating leases, net % 212y § (2360}

Deferred lease subvention income % (923) S (1,528}
Oiher asseis

Motes reccivable hy T8O 8 269

Other receivables, net b 5 B3
Liabilities:
Other liabilities

Uneamaed voluntary prodection contracl reventies

and msurance eamed premiums b3 T N 352
Oither payables, net 5 94 8 306
Notes payable 5 8 s 19

TMCOC receves subvention payments from TMMNA which result in a gross monthly subvention receivable. As of
March 31, 2022 and 2021, the subvention receivable from TMNA was 66 million and S184 million, respectively. We
have a master netting agreement with TMMNA which allows us to net settle payments for shared services and
subvention transactions. Under this agreement, as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, respectively, we had a net
amount payvable o TMNA which is recorded in Other pavables, net in Other liabilities.

Crur Board of Directors declared and paid cash dividends of ST00 million to TFSIC during liscal 2021,
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Note 12 = Related Party Transactions {Continued)

Financing Support Arrangements with Affiliates

TMCC is party to @ credit support agreement with TFSC (the “TMCC Credit Support Agreememt™). The TMCC
Credit Support Agreement requites TFSC to maintain centain ownership, net worth maintenance, and delt service
provisions with respect to TMCC, but 15 not a guarantee by TFSC of any secunities or obhigations of TMCC. In
conjunction with this credit suppont agreement, TMCOC has agreed to pay TFSC @ semi-annual fee based on a fixed rate
applicd to the weighted average outstanding amount of securities entitled to eredit suppon.

TCPR 15 the beneficiary of a credit support agreement with TFSC containing provisions similar to the TMOC Credit
Support Agreement desenibed abowve,

In addition, TMCC receives support from and provides financing support 1o TFSC and other affiliates in the form of
promissory noles and various loan and credit facility agreaments. As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, wotal linancing
support available from affiliates totaled approximately 32,5 billion and 55.6 billion, respectively, These amounts
inclhude a 550 billion three-year revolving eredit facility with TMS which currently expires in fiseal 2025 As of
March 31, 2022 and 2021, total financing support available to affiliates totaled approximately S%.0 billion and 37.1
illion, respectively, TMOC s inereased lnancing support provided (o Tovota Finance New Zealand Limited o 5250
million im Apnl 2021 and to TFSD to S1.0 billion m August 2021, Additionally, TMOC entered into a financing
support agreement with Toveta Finance Corporation (" TFC) for S100 million in August 2021, The amounts
outstanding under these agreements are recorded m Other assets and Other habilities on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets at March 31, 2022 and 2021,

In Movember 2021, in accordance with the financing support agreement, 1TFC borrowed from TMCC in Japanese Yen
a principal amount equavalent to S100 mallion, 10 be wsed for general corporate purposes, with an interest rate of
0.0175% and repayment date of November 2023, The note receivable is translated mto U.S, dollars using the
applicable exchange rate at the transaction date and retranslated at cach balance sheet date using the exchange rate in
effeet at that date. The resulung ransaction gains and losses are included in Investment and Other Income i our
Consolidated Statements of Income

In April 2022, TMOC entered into a revalving eredit facility with Toyota Finangial Services Colombia (TFSCO™),
pursuant to which TEFSCO s entitled 1o borrow a maximum principal amount equivalent to 54% million.

(Mher Financing Support Provided fo Affiliafes

TMCC provides wholesale linancing, real estate and working capital loans (o certain dealerships that were
consolidated with another affiliste under the accounting guidance for variable interest entitics. TMCC also pays these
dealers ongimation fees. These costs represent direct costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of retail and
lease comtracts, including subvention and other cash incentive programs,

TMUC has guaranteed the payments of principal and interest with respect to the bonds of manufacturing facilitics of
certain afliliates. The nature, business purpose. and amounts of these guarantees are described in Note 9 -
Commitments and Contingencies.

IMCC and TFSB are parties (o a master participation agreement pursuant to which TMOC agreed 10 purchase no
mote than 560 million per vear of residential mortgage loans orginated by TFSHE that meet specilied eredit
underwriting puidelines. At March 31, 2022 and 2021, we had 58 million and 315 milhon, respectively, in loan
pearticipations outstanding that had been purchased by TMCOC under this agreement.
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Note 12 — Related Pariy Transactions (Continuwed)

Shared Service Arrangements with Affiliates

TMOCC is subjeet to the following sharcd service agreements:

TMCC incurs costs under various shared serviee agreements with TMNA and other affilintes. Services
proveded by alfiliates under the shared service agreements melude certam techmological and admimstrative
services, such as miormation systems support, feihities, insurance coverage, human resources and other
corporate serviees. ITMCC may also participate amd ineur costs in shared marketing efforts with TMNA.

TMCC provides various services to its subsidiaries and affiliates, including cenain administeative and
corporate services, operational support, mformation systems support, facilites, weasury, and vendor
MANAEETTET SErVIESS,

TMOC provides various serviees 1o TFSE, including marketing, administrative, systems, and operational
support in exchange for TFSB making available certain financial products and serviees to TMOC s
customers and dealers meeting TFSB s credit standards, TMOC 55 pany 10 a master neting agreement
with TFSB, which allows TMCC 1o net setle payments for shared services between TMCOC and TFSB.
TMOCC 15 a party to expense reimbursement agreements with TFSB and TFSC related to costs incurred by
TMOC or these affiliotes on behalf of the other party i connection with TMCCs provision of services 1o
these aflilintes or the provision by these afliliates of certmn financial products and services o our
customers and dealers i support of TMOC s customer loyalty strategy and programs, and other brand and
sules support.

TMUC receives suppont from and provides support to TFSC and other affiliates in the form of promissory
notes and variows loan and credit focility agreements, mcluding a revolving credit faeility wath TMS,
which may be used for general corporate purposes.

TMCC and TFSE are parties o a serviees agreement, entered imto July 20210, whenem TMOC will
subservice loans on behall of TFSB.
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Naote 12 = Related Pariv Transactions ({Continued)

Operational Supporf Arrangements with Affiliates

TMCC and TCPR provide vanous wholesale financing (o dealers, which result in us having pavables o
TWMNA and Toveta de Puerto Rico Corp.

TMCC is party 1o a lease agreement with TMNA for our headquarters facility in Plano, Texas, expining in
2032, our CSC located in Cedar Rapads, Towa, expiring in 2029, and our Dallas Datn Center expiring in
2026, The lease commitments are desenibed in Note ¥ - Commitments and Conlingencics,

Subvention receivable represents amounis due from TMNA and other allilates in support of retm] and
lease subvention and other cash incentive programs offered by TMCC. Deferred subvention income
represents the uncamed portion of amounts received from these ransactions, and manulbclurers”
subwention and other revenues primartly represent the camed portion of such amounis,

Investment in operating leases mncludes contractual residual value suppon received from affiliales which
are tecogmized as an offsel o depreciation expense over the life of the contract

TMCC is a participating employer in certain retirement, post-retirement medical care and life insurance
benefits sponsored by TMNA, Refer to Note 10— Pension and Other Benefit Plans for additional
information.

TMCC is party o agreements with TMNA and other affiliates relating to the team member vehicle benefin
program, which allows team members to lease Toyolan and Lexus velicles on terms exclusive o the
benefit program. TMNA serves as the chiel admimistrator of the program, TMOC acquires and services
team member leases after origination. A portion of the vehicles used for the team member vehicle benefit
program are acuired from TMNA. TMOC receives a per vehicle contribution from participating
affiliates 1o assist with the costs of its contribution to the benefit program, and TMOC pays a per vehicle
participation fee to TMNA 1o participate in the benefit program.

Adfiliate voluntary protection contract revenues and insurance eamed premiums primarily represent
revenues from TMIS for coverage and related administrative services provided o TMNA and other
affiliates. This includes contractual indemnity coverage for limited warranties on certilied Tovola and
Lexus pre-owned vehicles and related administrative services for TMNA's centified pre-owned vehicle
program and umbrella lisbility policy. TMIS also provides umbrella lability imsurance o TMNA and
other alfiliates covering certain dollar value lavers of risk above vaniows pnmary or selfinsured
retentions. O all bavers in which TMIS has provided coverage, 99 percent of the risk has been ceded o
rensurer.
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Note 13 = Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or pand to trnster a lability m an orderly
transaction between markel participants at the measurement date. In order to determine fair value of our assets and
liabilities, we use quoted prices for wentical or similar instruments, otherwise we utilize valuation moedels with
ohservable or caleulsted inputs. The use of observable quotes for identical or similar instruments and the use of
unohservable mpats is reflected in the fir value hierarchy assessment disclosed in the tables within this Mote as Level
1, 2 and 3 defined below. The availabality of observable inputs can vary based upon the financial mstrument and other
factors, such as mstrument type, market hgudity and other specifie charactenstics particular to the financial
instrament. To the extent that a valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable m the
market, the determination of fair value requires additional pedgment by management. We use prices and inputs that
are current as of the measurement date, mcluding dunng penods of market disruption, In perniods of market disruption,
the availability of prices and mpots may be reduced for certain fmancial mstruments. This condition could result i a
financial instrument being reclassified from Level 1o Level 2 or from Level 2 o Level 3.

Level 1 Cuoted (inadjusted) prices i achive markets that are aceessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricled assets or abilities.

Level 2: Cuuoted prices in active markets for similar assets and habilities, or inputs that are observable, either directly
or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or habihiey.

Level 3: Unobservahle inputs that are supporied by litle or no market activity and may reguire sigmificant judgment
i order o determime the Gar valoe of the asscts and habilines

Valwation Adjusfments

We may make valuation adjustments to ensure that financial instruments are recorded ot fair value. These adjustments
mclude amounts to reflect counterparty credit quality, our own creditworthiness, as well as constrants due o market
illigqudity or unobservable parmmeters.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Cash and cash equivalents and Restricied cash and cash equivalents

The fair value of cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalems approximates the carrying value and these
mstruments are classified as Level 1 within the far value hierarchy.

Tnvestments in markerable seciritfes

We estimate the value of our AFS debt securities, ineluding those for which the fair value option was elected, using
observed transaction prices, independent third-party pricing valuation vendors, and internal valuation models.

We may hold mvestments m actively traded open-end and povate placement equity imvestments, Where the equity
mvestments produce a dmly met asset value that is quoted inan active market, we use this value o determine the fair
vitlue of the equity investment and elassify the investment as Level 1 within the Gair value hierarchy. The fair value of
equity investments that produce a dmly net asset value that 1= not quoted nan active market 15 estimated using the net
assel value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient and are excluded from leveling within the fair value
hierarchy.

In addition, we may hold individoal secunties where valuation methodologies and mputs (o valuation models depend
om the security type, thus they may be classilied dilferently within the leveling hierarchy. Where possible, quoted
prices in active markets for identical or similar securitics are used 1o determine the fair value of the investment
securities; those securities are classified as Level 1 o 2, respectively. Where quoted prices in active markets are not
avinlable, we use varows valuation models for cach asset class that are consistent with what market participants wse,
['he inputs and assumptions to the models are derived from market observable sources including: benchmark yields,
reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer sprepds, benchmark securities, bids, ofTers, and other market-related data.
These myvestments are generally classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy, however, depending on the
significance of the unobservable inputs they may also be classified as Level 3.
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MNote 13 = Fair Value Measurements {Continued)

Derivatives

We estimate the fair value of our dervanves using indusiry standard valuation models that require observable marker
inpts, meluding murkel prices, interest rates, foreign exchange mtes, volatilities, counterparty credit risk, our own
nogi-performmance rsk and the contractual terms of the denvative mstriments. We consider coumnterpany credit risk
and our own non-performance risk through credit valuation adjustments

For derivatives that trade in liquid markets, model mputs can generally be verified and do not require significant
management judgment. These denvative mstruments are classified as Level 2 within the famr value hierarchy.

Certwin other denvative transactions trade in less liguid markets with limited pricing mlomation. For such
derivatives, key inputs to the valuation process include quotes from counterparties and other market data used 10
corroborate and adjust values where appropriate, Other market data imcludes values obinined (mom o market
participant that serves as a third-panty valuation vendor, These denvative mstruments are classified as Level 3 within
the fmr value hicrarchy.

Nenrecirring Fair Valwe Measurenenis

Monrecurrng far value measurements mclude Level 3 net linance recevables that are not measured at fair value ona
recurring basis but are subject to Fair value adjustments utilizing the fr value of the underlying collateral when there
is evidence of impaimment. Nonrecurring fair value items as of March 31, 2022 and 2021 were not significant. Retail
finance receivables preater than 120 days past due are measured at fair value based on the fair value of the underlying
collateral less costs to sell. The far value of collateral 15 based on the current average sclling prices for like vehicles m
wholesale used vehicle auctions.
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Naote 13 = Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Financial assets and Gnancial habnlibes are classified i ther entirety based on the lowest level of mput that 15
significant to the fair value measurement. The following tables summarize our financial assets and financial linbilitics
measured at fair value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy except for cenain investments that
are measured a1 fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient and are
excluded from the leveling imformation provided in the ables below, Fair value smounts presented below are intended
to permit reconciliation of the fur value hierarchy to the amounts presented on our Conselidated Balance Sheets,

March 31, 2022
Counterparty
netting & Fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 colluterul vilse
Investneents m markeioble securtties:
Avaitable-for-sale deb secunibies:
LS, govermment and agency obhgatons 5 L1 . 5 % - 8 - 8 S04
Foreign governmient amed agency obligations - 3 - . 3
Mumcipal debt secunties - 10 - . 10
Corporate debt securities - 568 - - 568
Mongage-backed scounitics:
15, govermmeent ageney - .} - - 20
Non-ageney residentinl - T i 10
prpm'y u:mial - TR ] 86
Assgi-hacked secuntics - 75 3 - i
Available-for-sale debt securities total 504 TR6 14 1,304
Equity imvestments:
Fixed income musiual funds:
Frved income mutual funds measuned o
et aswel value 1,137
Totn! returm bond funds 1,576 . - . 1,576
Expuaty mutial funds 936 - - . 936
Equity investments total 2512 - - - 3649
Investments m marketable securities total 016 TR 14 - 4953
Derivative asses!
[iaterest e swigs - 1,425 - - 1,425
Foreign curmency swaps - 55 - . 55
Counterparty netting and gollaternl - - - {1419} {1,419}
Dierivative assets total - 1480 - {1.419) 6l
Assets ot fr vahse 3,006 2,266 14 (1.419) 5004
Derivative lahiliies:
Iterest mie swigs = (8X2) = - (822)
Foreign currency swaps - (717 - . (717}
Counterparty nettimg and collmiernd - - - 1,504 1514
Liahilities ot fair value - i1.539) = 1,504 (25)
Ned assets a1 fuir vahse 5 ins s 717 % 14 & 95 8 4,589
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Nate 13 — Fair Value Measurements {Continued

March 31, 2021

Counterparty
netting & Fair
Level | Level 2 Level 3 collmeral vitlue
Imvestments in marketable securitics:
Avalable-for-sale debt secunnes:
U5, govenmment and agency oblignixms £ 00 s 2 5 - 8 -8 21
Mumicipal debt securities - 10 . - 16
Commercial paper 20 176 - - 1946
Corporate del secuntics - 187 - - 187
Morigage-backed securitics:
L5, govemmien agency . 2 . . a2
Non-ageney resadential . - | . 1
Non-ageney commercial - 5 42 - 47
Assei-hacked secunities - 19 33 - 52
Available-for=sabe debt secuntses 1wl ¥y ) 431 6 . T3
Equuty investmeits:
Fixed ineome mutual fumbs:
Fixed mcome mutual fumds measured m
net pssel vakue T2
Total retum bond hemds 2429 - - - 2429
Exquety mtual funds _ EE3 - - - B3
Espnaty mvestmemts 1oinl 3an - . - 4084
Investments in marketable securities 1otal 3541 41l 6 - 4820
DRerivanive assels:
Interest mle swaps - 1026 - - 1,026
Foreign curtency swaps - 330 - - Ex]
Counterporty netting and collateral - i - {1,302) (1,303
Drerivtive assets lotal - 1,356 . (1,302) 54
Assets at fair value 3,541 1,787 6 (1,302} 4574
Drerivativie linbalitses:
Interest rale swaps - {1,142 . - (1.142)
Forelgn currency swaps - (243) . (243)
Counterparty netiing and collateral ) - - ) 1,384 1384
Liabilities ot fmr value - {1.385) - 1.384 (1)
Met asacts af farr value 5 E T 402 5 T 5 B 5 4,873

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The Level 3 financial assets and liabilities recorded at far value which are subject to recurring and nonrecurring fair
value measurement, and the corresponding activity and change in the fair value measurements of these assels and
liabilities, were mod sigmificant to our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, or Consolidated
Statements of Tncome for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 202 1.
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MNote 13 = Fair Value Measurements {Continwed)

Financial Insirnments Nof Carried af Fair Value
Finance recefvades

Our finance receivables consist of retail loans and dealer finmmeing loans, which are comprised of wholesale, real
estate and working capital linoncing.  Retml (inance receivables are primanly valued using a securitization model that
incorporates expected cash fows, Cash Mows expected (o be collected are estimated using contractual principal and
interest payments adjusted for specific factors, such as prepayments, extensions, default rates, loss sevenity, credil
seores, and collateral type. The securitization model ulilizes quoted secondary market mtes if available, or estimated
markel rates that mcorporate management's best estimate of investor assumphions about the portfolio, The dealer
financing portiolio is valued using a discounted cash flow model. Discount rates are derved based on market mtes for
cquivalent portfolio bond ratings. As these valuations ulilize unobservable inputs, our finanee receivables are
classified as Level 3 wiathin the fair value hicrarchy

nsecured motes and loans pavable

The fair value of commercial paper is assumed o approximate the carrying value due to its shon duration and
senerally neghgible credit nsk. We valudate this assumption by recaleulating the far value of our commercial paper
using quated market rates. Commercial paper is classilicd as Level 2 within the far value hicrarchy,

Other unsecured notes and loans payable are primanly valued using current market rates and credit spresds for deln
with similar maturities. Our valuation models utilize observable inputs such as standard industry curves; therefore, we
classily these unsecured notes and loans payables as Level 2 within the fir value hicrarchy., When observable mputs
are pot available for all assumptions, we estimate the fair value using imernal assumptions such as volatility and
expected credit losses. As these valuations utilize unobservable inputs, we classify these unsecured notes and loans
payable as Level 3 within the fair value hicrarchy.

Secured notes and loans payable

Fair value is estimated based on current market rates and credit spreads for debt with similar maturitics. We also use
internal assumptions, mcluding prepavment speeds and expected credit losses on the underlying secuntized assets, to
estimate the timing of cash Oows o be paid on these instruments. As these valuations utilize unobservable inputs, our
secured notes and loans payables are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

her linhilities

Crur Other liabalities mclude notes payable w related parties. As these notes are short tenm i nature, the camying
value 15 deemed o approximate far value and they are elassified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
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(Dollars in millions)

Naote 13 = Fair Value Measurements (Continued )

Financial Instruments

The following tables provide information about assets and labilities not camed at fair value on a recumng basis on
our Consohidated Balance Sheets:

March 31, 2022

Camrving Tonal Fair
value Level 1 Lievel 2 Level 3 vilue
Financial assets
Finance reeeivables
Retal loan 5 71369 % - 5 - % T3385 5 73385
Wholesale 2,940 - - 2931 2,931
Real estate 4,985 - - 4,961 4,961
Working capital 2,256 - - 2171 2,171
Financial liabilitics
Unsecured notes and loans payable £ HKIIEE 8 - 5 RO9ED 3 - 5  BOYR0
Secured notes and loans payable 26,804 E - 26,500 26,500
March 31, 2021
Camying Fotal Fair
value Level 1 Liovel 2 Level 3 vitlie
Financial nssets
Finance receivables
Retml loan 3 63808 5 - 5 - & 62007 5 69007
Whaolesale 6 132 - - 6,158 6,158
Real estate 5,142 - - 5224 5224
Workng capital 2154 - = 2171 217

Financial liabilites
Unseeured motes and loans payable % 85513 8 5 B6205 S 555 § 86,760
Securcd notes and loans payable 24,212 - - 24,478 24,478

Accrued imterest related to finance receivables is i Otiher assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets; however, TMOC
measures the fuir value of each class of finance receivables using scheduled principal and interest payments.
Therefore, acerued mterest has been meluded in the carmying value of each class of finance reccivables in the previous
tables, along with finance receivables, deferred ongmation costs, deferred meome, and allowance for credit losses,
Finance receivables in the previous tables exclude related panty transactions, for which the fur value approximates the
carrying value, of 590 million and 5140 nullion a1t March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Far values of related party
finance recervables, net are classified as Level 3 within the far value hicrarchy.

For Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, the far
value approximates the earrying value and these instruments are classified as Level | within the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 14 - ent Information

Our reportable segments are Finance operations and Voluntary protectiion operations.  Finance operations inelude
retail, leasing. and dealer financing provided to authorized dealers and their customers in the U.S. and Puerto Rico.
Voluntary protection operations are performed by TMIS and its subsadiaries.

Fimancial iformaton for our reportable operating segments, which mcludes allocated corpomie expenses, 15

summarized as follows:
Year ended March 31, 2022
Voluntary
Fimance protection [ntercompany
operstions operations eliminations Toaal
T'otal finpmeing revenuses 5 1920 5 - 5 - 5 11,920
Depreceiion on operting leases 5546 . . 5846
Interest expense 1401 - . 1401
Met mancing revenues 4,673 - . 4,673
Voluntary prolection coniract revenucs
and insurance camed premiums - 115 - 1015

Investment and other income (loss), net 43 (71 - __(26)
MNet fmancing and other revenies 4. TI8 LLERY - 5,662
Expenses:

Provision for credit losses 236 - - 236

Operating ond sdministrtive 1311 86 . 1697

Yoluntary profechion controct expensss amd insurance losses . 405 - 405
T'otal expenses 1.547 Ta1 - 2338
Income before iIncome xes LT 153 - 330
Provision for income taxes 755 4 . TR
Met income s 0 (- 119 § -~ 5 2,535
Total assets 5 128684 § 6510 % {153) § 135,041

114
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Note 14 ent Information (Continued

Year ended March 31, 2021

Voluntary
Finamee protection Intercompany
operations OPETILoNS climinations Total
Total finoncing revenues 5 1,799 § - 5 - % 11,799
Depreciation on opsrating leases 5932 - - 5932
Interest expense 2,302 - - 2,302
Net finomeing revenses 1.565 = = 3,565
Voluwiitary protection coniract revenues
and insurance eamed premums - UATH - 56
Investment and other income, net a3 317 - 410
Met finnncing and other revenues 3,658 1,273 - 4,931
Expenses:
Provision for credil losses 426 - - 426
Oiperating and admimsimiive 1,024 RLES - 1,487
Woluntary protection contract expenses and insummee bosses . KL - 3o
T'otal expenses 1,550 732 - 2,282
Income before meome txes 2008 541 . 2,649
Provision for income axes 502 130 - 632
Net income 5 1,606 § 411 5 - § 2.1 7
Totul nssels § 127726 § 6140 8 (147) & 133728
Year ended March 31, 2020
Voluntary
Finance protection  Indercompany
OpETaLions operations clinminea tions Total
Total fiaicing revenes 5 12020 % - 5 - % 12,029
Depreciation on operaning leases 6, H20 - - 6,820
Interest expense 2854 - (20} 2834
Met finamcing revenwes 2,355 - 0 2,375
Voluntary protection contract revenues
and msurance eamed premiums - 933 - 233
Investment and siher income, net 155 1&7 (20} 322
Met finomeing and other revenues 2510 1,120 = 3,630
Expenses:
Provision for credinl losses 30 - - 590
Orperating and adminisiriive 1,197 kS - 1.561
Volumtary profection contract expenses and insurance losses - 455 - 455
Total expenses 1,787 819 - 2,604
Income before income mxes T3 iy - 1.024
Provision for income tioes in [Fs - 111
Met income 5 04 5 . . - & 913
Total assels 5 121180 S 5530 § {1.14%y & 25555

115
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MNote 14 = Segment Information (Continued)

Valunfary profection operafions

The voluntary protection operations segment offers vehicle and payment protection products on Tovota, Lexus and
other domestic and import velucles that are primarily sold by dealers along with the sale ol a vehicle.

Volwrtery protection controct revemies

W recerve the contractually determined dealer cost at the inception of the contract. Revenue is then deferred and
recognized over the tenm of the contract according to carmngs Tactors established by management that are based upon
historical loss expenence. Contracts sold range in term from 3 to 120 months and are typically cancellable at any
time. The elfect of subsequent cancellations 15 recorded a5 an offset 1o uneamed voluntary protection contract
revenues im Other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For the vears ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, approximately 82 percent and 83 percent of voluntary
profection contract revenues in the Voluntary protection operations segment were accounted for under the guidance for
revenue from contracts with customers,

The Voluntary protection operations segment defers contractually determined mceentives paid 1o dealers as contract
costs for selling voluntary protection products, These costs are recorded in Other assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets and are amorteed o Operating and admimstrative expenses i the Consolidated Statements of Income using a
methodology consistent with the recopnition of revenue, The amount of capitalized dealer mcentives and the related
amortzation wis not sigm feant to our consolidated financial statements as of and for the vears ended March 31, 2022
and 2021,

We had 52 4 illon and 52.5 ballen of unearned voluntary prolection contract revenues from contracts with customers
included m Other liabilines on owr Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021,
respectively, We recogmized ST04 mullion of the uneamed amounts in mluntur}r profection contracl revenues in our
Consolidated Statements of Income during fiscal 2022, compared 1o 3696 million dunng fiscal 2021, As of March 31,
2022, we had uneamed voluntary protection contraet revenues ol 52,7 billion included in Other liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet, and with respect to this balance, we expect 1o recognize revenue of approximately 5753
mllion m fiscal 2023 and 51.9 Bllion thereafier.

Instrance earmed FJ"L'J'FJ'J;!FHM'

Revienues From providmg coverage under vanows msurance contracts are recogmized over the term of the coverage in
relation to the timing and level of anticipated clums, Revenues from msumnce policies, net of premiums ceded
remsurers, are eamed ovier the terms of the respective policies in proportion o the estimated loss development.
Munagement relies on histornical loss expenence as a basis [or establishing carmings (aetors used o recognize revenue
ower the term of the contract or policy,

Feluntary profection confract expenses and insurance fosses

Voluntary protection contract expenses and insurance losses include amounts paid and accrued for loss events that are
known and have been recorded as elaims, estimates of fosses incurred but not reponted based on actuarial estimates
and historical loss development patterns, and loss adjustment expenses that are expected to be incurred in connection
with settling and paying these claims.
Accruals for unpaid losses, losses incurred but not reported, and loss adjustment expenses are included in Other
Imhﬂihua‘ om our Consolidated Balonee Sheets. These aceruals ansing from contracts entered into by TMIS are not
ignificant as of March 31, 2022 and 2021. Estimated liabilities are reviewed regularly, and we recognize any
jmlmmh in the periods in which they are determined. I anticipated losses, loss adjustment expenses, and
un:n.uwnm'd acquisition and maintenance costs exceed the recorded unenmed premium, a premium deficiency is
recognized by first charging any unamortized acquisition costs W expense and then by recording a liability for any
excess deficiency.

Risk Tva mﬁ'r

Our voluntary protection operations transfer certain nisks o protect us agamst the impact of unpredictable high
severity losses, The amounts recoverable from remnsurers and other companies that assume linbilities relating to our
Voluntary protection operations are determined in o manner consistent with the related reinsurance or risk transfer
contract. Amounts recoverable from remsurers and other compantes on unpaid losses are recorded as a recetvable bu
are not eollectible until the losses are paid. Revenues related 1o nsks transfemed are recognized on the same basis as
the related revenues from the underlying contracts. Covered losses are recorded as a reduetion to Voluntary protection
contract expenses and insurance losses.

116
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)
116 117 118
2019 2020 2021 2022
— | 29,866,547 27,214,594 | 31,379,507
— 2,792,942 2,932,354 3,990,532
— 2,036,140 2,245,261 2,850,110
— 1,555,009 3,217,806 3,954,350
19,907,100 | 20,618,888 23,404,547 26,245,969
53,416,405 | 53,972,363 62,267,140 67,688,771
() 1,405.65 1,490.80 1,674.18 1,904.88
() — 145.49 160.65 205.23
() — 144.02 158.93 205.23
() 37.3 38.2 37.6 38.8
() — 10.0 10.2 11.5
() — 8.9 10.7 10.8
— 2,398,496 2,727,162 3,722,615
— 2,124,650 4,684,175 577,496
— 362,805 2,739,174 2,466,516
3,602,805 4,098,450 5,100,857 6,113,655
) 371,193 361,907 366,283 372,817
[86,708]| [86,596] [80,009]| [87,120]|
2021 10 116
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114 115 116
2018 2019 2020
29,379,510 | 30,225,681 | 29,929,992
2,620,429 2,285,465 2,554,607
2,493,983 1,882,873 2,076,183
2,393,256 1,936,602 1,866,642
)| 19,922,076 | 20,565,210 | 21,241,851
)| 50,308,249 | 51,936,949 [ 52,680,436
1,287.73 1,366.18 1,450.43
168.40 130.11 147.12
166.56 129.02 145.90
37.2 37.3 38.1
13.7 9.8 10.4
8.1 10.0 8.8
4,223,128 3,766,597 3,590,643
3,660,092 2,697,241 3,150,861
449,135 540,839 397,138
3,219,639 3,706,515 4,412,190
369,124 370,870 359,542
[ 84,731] [ 87,129] [ 86,219]|
116
2021 10 114
115 114
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)
114 115 116 117 118
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
12,201,444 | 12,634,439 | 12,729,731 | 11,761,405 | 12,607,858
2,238,140 | 2,323,122 | 1,735,365 | 1,886,601 | 2,171,530
1,859,313 | 1,806,825 | 1,424,062 | 1,638,057 | 1,693,947
635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402
3,262,907 | 3,262,907 | 3,262,097 | 3,262,997 | 16,314,987
47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
12,040,948 | 12,450,275 | 12,500,801 | 13,804,021 | 14,607,272
17,200,436 | 17,716,994 | 17,809,246 | 21,198,281 | 20,991,040
() 794.54 845.11 875.44 959.55 1,060.16
220 220 220 240 148
( , ) ( 100) ¢ 100) ( 100) ( 105) ( 120)
158 211 264 264
( N ) ( 79.0) (105.5) (132.0) (132.0) « )
() 125.66 131.42 100.85 116.56 121.98
() 124.17 129.98 100.05 115.31 121.97
() 70.0 70.3 70.7 65.5 69.6
() 15.9 15.5 11.4 12.4 11.9
() 10.9 9.9 12.9 14.8 18.2
() 35.0 33.5 43.6 41.2 42.6
O 74,890 74,515 74,132 71,373 70,710
] [ 10.905] [ 11.122] [ 10,795]] [ 9,565]| [ 9,017]|
) 116.6 114.6 118.5 157.5 203.1
() (115.9) (110.0) (99.6) (141.5) (144.3)
TOPIX)
2,475
() 7,806 7,686 8,026 8,712 (153
1,622
() 5,670 6,045 5,771 6,163 120
29 2020 31 118

118
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2021 10 114
118 120 28
148
114 115 116 117 118
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
220 220 220 240 260
) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 105) ( 120)
2021 2021
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@
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
1,978,884 2,141,906 2,200,557 2,174,001 2,350,615
280,769 313,306 281,329 474,498 646,813
509,930 222,308 223,836 350,229 478,661
439,270 267,214 103,547 497,070 801,434
2,733,310 2,893,403 3,005,729 3,484,968 4,294,851
22,636,927 | 23,660,621 | 24,574,145 | 27,482,433 | 30,751,097
( ) | 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85 | 1,884,482.41 | 2,184,614.29 | 2,689,761.92
() 324,692.91 | 141,552.90 | 142,525.61 | 223,004.92 |  304,782.79
() = = - - =
() 11.9 12.1 12.0 12.5 13.7
() 20.5 8.0 7.7 11.0 12.5
() — — — — —
) 10,364 10,634 11,469 12,226 12,986
(1,450) (1,540) (1,542) (1,386) (1,374)
)
29 2020 31 2022

2022
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@)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
58,411 75,532 67,138 67,148 116,713
47,297 63,027 52,635 47,481 91,361
42,983 57,665 43,866 41,009 82,651
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
624,560 580,459 621,868 665,834 747,288
633,111 586,472 629,775 674,448 757,115
397,682.51 | 369,601.93 | 395,968.40 | 423,963.15 |  475,828.45
. 63,674.00 . B 7,640
(63,674.00) )
27,369.48 36,717.92 27,931.86 26,112.55 52,627.34
98.6 99.0 98.7 98.7 98.7
7.1 9.6 7.3 6.4 11.7
— 173.4 — — 14.5
73 85 99 230 120
(16) (14) 17 (23) (20)

(

)
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)
)
635,401 100
)
16,500 100
Plano, ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Henderson, ) 700 100
Nevada, U.S.A. (100)
Markham, ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
Cologne, Germany 30,000 100
Amsterdam, )
( Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 137,350
) 100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, )
New Sou?h Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
Bangkok, Thailand %gg)
18,100 )
4,100,000 100
Makati, Philippines 60
8,700,000
67
)
) (
)
( )
10
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)
2,401
3,537
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C ) 120
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(
1,167
896 431
« )
2,382
296 196
« )
5,568
1,015
« )
835
258 97
( )
4,719
422
30 7,510
4,568 24 3,305
26 4,562
7,423 12 4,054
2,948

6,103
4,786
29

913

170

866

43

685

8,117

7,163
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987,541 943,868

17,658,090 , 19,792,889

1,868,626 2,160,538

907,274 910,666

749,755 862,165

297,587 339,531

21,873,701 24,330,597

C ) , 4,590,637 , 5,010,983
33,906 33,315

4,624,543 5,044,298
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870,500 650,387
) 2,626,264 2,774,399
3,407,752 3,724,548
3,159,986 3,240,317
52,114 58,717
1,546,477 1,957,116
11,663,095 12,405,487
7,287,309 8,163,623
. 4,424,495 5,298,949
421,390 319,338
15,835 14,895
19,977 18,236
165,361 235,715
12,334,370 14,050,757
23,997,465 26,456,245
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
3,204,079 3,681,563
3,442,505 3,919,988
2,141 10,588
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13,649 314,286
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3,484,968 4,294,851
27,482,433 30,751,097

262/313



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

( )
(2020 2021

2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
2,174,001 2,350,615
1,225,949 1,227,191
948,052 1,123,423
502,615 513,001
445,436 610,332
673 430
3,958 7,884
23,290 26,010
2,130 3,213
30,053 37,538
634 381
357 675
991 1,057
474,498 646,813
— 5,831
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1,235,132 1,362,831
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
72,612 82,531
19,856 25,876
1,467 1,940
1,467 1,940

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
4,131,896 4,158,242
44,632 64,756
12,564 13,990
4,189,093 4,236,989
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4,297,338 4,708,591
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3,291,112 3,590,063
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100,150 119,005
108,348 90,639

2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
( )5,218 ( )32,690
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5,401 16,661
2,106 153
3,295 16,815
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2,206 12,729
398 208
817 696
1,216 487
315 76
900 411
144,460 325,435
924 6,291
146,690 319,408
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243,077 324,644
225,722 281,448
176,064 225,781
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49,095 43,467
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283,418 311,229
190,362 202,245
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784,641 856,017
830,386 908,695
1,615,028 1,764,712
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©) 1,455,698 1,476,736 21,037
20,171,150 20,877,987 706,837
() « ) 10,695,062 10,913,002 217,940
(@) « ) 7,050,759 7,071,284 20,525
17,745,821 17,984,287 238,465
C )
82,685 91,727 9,042
674 1,917 1,243
82,011 89,809 7,798
C D
« )
« )
C D
C D
C D )
C (€)
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« ) 296,118
19,496,771 19,829,058 332,287
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1,583,699
«C )
« ) 35,478
1,548,220 1,623,963 75,742
®3) 1,771,265 1,808,678 37,412
22,816,257 23,261,700 445,442
() « ) 11,888,172 11,723,650 164,522
O « ) 8,073,349 8,010,370 62,978
19,961,521 19,734,020 227,500
C )
83,480 95,055 11,575
302 305 2
83,177 94,750 11,572
«C )
C )
C )
« )
«C )
C ) )
C ) ©)
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987,541 — —
6,417,314 9,934,252 1,058,572
457,949 867,014 10,258
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2,712 6,082 25,174
502,659 — 399
515,541 26,393 40,735
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943,868 — —
6,648,156 11,502,082 1,335,901
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803,617 145,002 254,574
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— 277,081 — 277,081
— 142,956 — 142,956
— 420,038 — 420,038
@
(2022 31 )
— — 19,829,058 19,829,058
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19,347 18,869 477
32,090 30,599 1,491
366,951 348,643 18,307
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423,765 271,969 18,232 18,232
415,305 271,856 13,208 13,208
307,302 223,623 5,991 5,991
2,031,426 1,342,121 7,164 7,164
4,836,398 2,945,717 77,441 77,441
@
)
4,988,360 3,938,590 89,257 89,257
10,431,936 6,608,192 106,962 106,962
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@
)
44,000 44,000 674
143,500 143,500 1,243
187,500 187,500 1,917
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595,390 473,889 77,833 77,833
376,244 244,568 11,382 11,382
369,368 281,795 17,924 17,924
312,246 129,748 8,517 8,517
2,037,562 1,338,892 38,369 38,369
4,968,616 2,839,105 210,225 210,225
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5,025,295 4,164,073 116,345 116,345
10,467,033 7,602,414 228,304 228,304
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74,886 79,133
11,663 15,391
65,227 81,727
151,777 176,253
10,882 12,387
140,895 163,865
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55,194 40,753
482,491 402,282
341,596 238,416
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1,471 8,270 0 9,741 | 15,424 25,166 | 25,166 —
222,709 | 1,478,429 | 79,232 | 1,780,371 | 418,796 | 2,199,167 | 25,166 | 2,174,001
10,015 | 334,606 | 16,071 | 360,693 | 91,283 | 451,976 | 6,540 | 445,436
1,847,202 (14,523,785 | 1,425,417 [17,796,406 | 6,320,948 |24,117,354 — 24,117,354
3,079 | 265,260 | 24,840 | 293,180 | 127,039 | 420,219 | 13,988 | 406,231
8,236 | 647,113 1,023 | 656,373 | 74,016 [ 730,390 40 | 730,430
13,824 48,619 | 27,264 89,707 | 18,641 | 108,348 — | 108,348
@ 6,540
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10,730 445,258 86,734
358,023
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238,289 | 1,556,834 83,591 | 1,878,714 | 471,900 | 2,350,615 — | 2,350,615
8,304 8,042 — 16,347 21,198 37,546 | 37,546 —
246,593 | 1,564,876 83,591 | 1,895,062 | 493,099 | 2,388,162 | 37,546 | 2,350,615
29,649 436,176 25,837 491,663 | 133,547 625,211 | 14,878 610,332
1,821,849 16,213,841 | 1,451,135 (19,486,827 | 7,477,584 (26,964,411 — |26,964,411
16,496 190,921 22,333 229,752 | 130,430 360,183 | 15,294 344,888
11,842 666,019 1,240 679,101 95,755 774,856 44 774,901
13,297 30,697 28,179 72,175 18,464 90,639 — 90,639
)
€Y 14,878
) 15,294
27,813 511,323 90,200
408,262
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221,237 1,400,989 551,773 2,174,001
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@
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32,226 4,122,573 469,743 4,624,543
10
( 2021 2022 31 )
1)
@
( )
238,289 1,480,614 631,711 2,350,615
)
@
( )
57,176 4,354,462 632,658 5,044,298
10
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( 2021 2022 31 )
)

295/313



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

2020 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
2,184,614 29 2,689,761 92
223,004 92 304,782 79
)
2020 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
350,229 478,661
( — —
350,229 478,661
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
) 3,484,968 4,294,851
54,031 70,580
3,430,936 4,224,271
) 1,570,500 1,570,500
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( ) ( ) (@)
2015 567,000 572,001 | 0.00 2021
() (126,000)
2021 0.32 2028
2016 922,487 1,062,330 [ 0.68 |( ) 2021
() (249,848)
(@D) 2022 [ 242 [ 299 39.68 2028
()
70,900 61,760
4,000 12,000
4,990 4,991
900 1,200
23,050 23,250
13,000 15,000
300 1,900
3,000 3,000
1
5,000
300
1
2007 9,205,574 10,253,840 [ 0.10 2021
(3,348,699)
) 2022 [ 54,928 [ 56,307 29.48 2048
()
) 9,946 8,890
1,490 1,339
2,331 2,475
2,567 1,876
13,330 13,815
5,354 5,125
855 1,250
40 20
300 300
1,500 1,500
1
85
3,250
1
11,888,172
— — 10,695,062 (724 548) — — —

297/313



(

)

11

)

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

3,726,600

2,668,273

2,185,394

1,075,052
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( ) ( ) )
870,500 650,387 2.04 —
2,626,264 2,774,399 1.66 —
1,369,699 1,588,663 1.00 —
) 4,424,495 5,298,949 1.40 [ 2023 2038
1,812,539 2,258,676 1.04 [ 2023 2026
) 3,159,986 3,240,317 0.38 —
)
( )
2,328,525 1,363,352 1,040,912 313,458
1,169,580 565,530 523,565 —
100
@
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(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
15,227 13,549
8,202 9,024
67,740 105,450
1,797 3,618
92,967 131,642
257 306
462 34
19,847 17,814
254,385 270,526
153,185 180,964
151,080 151,080
2,262 4,745
580,760 625,131
581,480 625,472
674,448 757,115
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4,482 4,866
3,406 4,208
7,889 9,075
724 751
8,613 9,826
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
507,730 590,382
507,730 590,382
664,780 747,432
1,053 143
1,053 143
665,834 747,288
674,448 757,115
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( 2020 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
51,275 99,645
15,872 17,067
67,148 116,713
9,033 9,701
9,033 9,701
58,115 107,012
11,674 17,372
46,441 89,639
— 450
249 395
141 171
532 432
126 273
1,050 1,722
10 0
10 0
47,481 91,361
4,234 3,869
— 415
4,234 4,285
43,246 87,076
3,574 6,428
1,337 2,003
2,236 4,424
41,009 82,651
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( )
78,525 78,525 466,721 623,771 1,902 621,868
41,009 41,009 41,009
) 2,955 2,955
— — 41,009 41,009 2,955 43,965
78,525 78,525 507,730 664,780 1,053 665,834
( 2021 2022 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 507,730 664,780 1,053 665,834
82,651 82,651 82,651
) 1,196 1,196
— — 82,651 82,651 1,196 81,454
78,525 78,525 590,382 747,432 143 747,288
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(2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
6,270 12,653
1,999 1,519
360 303
130 168
(2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
_ 6,164
141 171
— 252
100 20
100 10
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)
(2021 31 )
(
[©) — — —
D) 1,580 39,590 38,010
1,580 39,590 38,010
)
)
2021 31
220,128
32,675
252,804
(2022 31 )
(
(1) — _ _
[0) 1,580 59,483 57,902
1,580 59,483 57,902
()
)
2022 31
236,270
32,675
268,945
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(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )

2,504 3,688

920 2,274

971 1,542

216 344

147 256

212 222

164 164

110 92

— 63

56 43

43 33

5,348 8,726

2,890 4,202

2,457 4,524

45 45

464 —

510 45

1,947 4,478

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
30.6 30.6
33.9 32.9
5.5 5.8
3.0 1.5
0.0 0.1
5.2 5.1
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) ( )
231,900 8,116
Uber Technologies, Inc. 1,025,174 4,476
7,280,000 2,933
SYNQA 263,066 1,603
5,571,984 683
14,372,124 17,814
C Y|l Yl Hlc D C | ¢y
( )
— — — 461 154 36 306
— — — 86 51 7 34

&)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation:

Opinion on the Financial Satements

We have audited the accompanying consolidatedbal ance sheets of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
shareholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2022, including the related notes
(collectively referred to asthe “ consolidated financial statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2022 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Change in Accounting Principle

Asdiscussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
credit lossesin fiscal year 2021.

Basisfor Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidatedfinancial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financia reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company'sinterna control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dueto error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the consolidated financia statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (i) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosuresto which it relates.

312/313



EDINETOI OO
OO0000000000000000000000O(E05904)
Ooooodo
Retail Loan Portfolio Allowance for Credit Losses

As described in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company had retail loans of $73,380 million, for
which an allowance for credit losses of $1,195 million was recorded as of March 31, 2022. The allowance for credit losses
represents management’ s estimate of expected credit losses over the expected lifetime of the loans. The loan lifetime is
regarded by management as the reasonable and supportable period. Management uses statistical modelsto estimate lifetime
expected credit losses of the retail 1oan portfolio by applying probability of default and loss given default to the exposure at
default on aloan level basis. Probability of default models are developed from internal risk scoring models which consider
variables such as delinquency status, historical default frequency and other credit quality indicators such as loan-to-value ratio,
book payment-to-income ratio, FICO score at origination, collateral type, and contract term. Loss given default models forecast
the extent of losses given that a default has occurred and consider variables such as collateral, trends in recoveries, historical
loss severity and other contract structure variables. Exposure at default represents the expected outstanding principal balance,
including the effects of expected prepayment when applicable. The lifetime expected credit |osses incorporate the probability
weighted forward |ooking macroeconomic forecasts for baseline, favorable, and adverse scenarios. If management does not
believe the models reflect lifetime expected credit losses, a qualitative adjustment is made to reflect management judgment
regarding observable changes in recent or expected economic trends and conditions, portfolio composition, and other relevant
factors.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the retail loan portfolio allowance for
credit lossesis acritical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management in determining the estimate of the retail
loan portfolio alowance for credit losses, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in
performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence relating to probability of default and loss given default assumptions and
the qualitative adjustment used in estimating the allowance for credit losses, and (ii) the audit effort involved the use of
professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financia statements. These procedures also included, among others, testing management’s process
for estimating the retail loan portfolio allowance for credit losses by (i) evaluating the appropriateness of the models used to
estimate the retail 1oan portfolio allowance for credit losses, (i) testing certain data used in the estimate, and (iii) evaluating the
reasonableness of probability of default and loss given default assumptions and the qualitative adjustment, which also involved
the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to perform these procedures to test management’s process.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas

June 3, 2022

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1983.
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